
Internal 
l

Wednesday, October 25, 2023 AGENDA Page 1 

DISASTER AND FIRE SAFETY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

October 25, 2023 
7:00 PM 

Fire Department Division of Training Classroom – 997 Cedar Street 

Mayor’s Appointee- Andy Katz 
District 1 – Michael Wilson 
District 2 – Weldon Bradstreet 
District 3 – Todd Darling            
District 4 – Robert Kinosian            

District 5 – Shirley Dean 
District 6 – Greg Murphy 
District 7 – Harrison Raine 
District 8 – Theo Gordon

AGENDA 

Preliminary Matters 
Call to Order 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters 

1. Chairperson’s Report
2. Fire Department Staff Report*

Staff Report includes presentation on Fire Department FY23 Overview and
FY24 Goals* (Staff)

Consent Items 

3. Minutes of September 27, 2023*
From: Commission Secretary
Recommendation: Approve the draft minutes of the September 27, 2023 
Regular Meeting.



Internal 

Wednesday, October 25, 2023 AGENDA Page 2 

Internal

Action Items 

4. Send a Commendation Letter to Steve Greenberg for his years of service to the
City’s Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) program (Bradstreet)*

5. Provide a recommendation to City Council on the development of a plan that
includes a feasibility study and identification of funding sources for constructing
an emergency secondary access road on Panoramic Hill (Dean)*

6. Provide recommendation to Council regarding separation of mixed-use
pedestrian and e-bike pathways (Dean)*

7. Request to merge action and discussion calendars under the title “Items for
Discussion and Possible Action” (Dean)*

Discussion Items 
8. New Commissioner Work Plan Participation* (Bradstreet)
9. Clarification of recently approved ordinance on ADUs and JADUs* (Dean)
10. Discussion on impact of increased density due to new developments along

Shattuck/Adeline (Darling)
11. Discussion on biolabs and other large facilities, hazardous materials contained

therein, and potential emergency response impacts and challenges (Dean)

Work Group Reports 

• Plan & Budget Oversight
• Home Hardening
• Wildland Urban Interface
• Safe Passages
• Community Outreach

Future Agenda Items and Next Steps 

• Send a Commendation Letter to Chief Sprague for the Master Facilities Plan
(Dean)

Adjournment 



Internal

Wednesday, October 25, 2023 AGENDA Page 3 

Internal

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to 
Keith May, kmay@berkeleyca.gov  510-981-5508.  

Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part 
of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: E-mail 
addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required but, if included in any 
communication to a City board, commission, or committee, will become part of the public record. If you do 
not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver 
communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission, 
or committee. If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not 
include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, 
commission, or committee for further information. 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the commission regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection at Berkeley Fire Department located at 2100 Martin Luther 
King Jr. Way Berkeley, CA. 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair-accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please 

contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days 
before the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

I hereby certify that the agenda for this regular/special meeting of the Berkeley City’s Disaster and Fire 
Safety Commission was posted at the front of the Division of Training, 997 Cedar Street, as well as on the 
City’s website, three days prior to the scheduled Commission meeting.  

SECRETARY SIGNATURE 

mailto:kmay@berkeleyca.gov


DFSC Staff Report 

October 25, 2023 

1. Measure FF Monthly Report

a. Budget Overview –

b. Quarter 1 (July, August, September) report due in November

Quarter 2 (October, November, December) report due in February

Quarter 3 (January, February, March) report due in May

Quarter 4 (April, May, June) End of Year Report due in October

i. Program Review

• Standards of Coverage Analysis – The Department is undergoing an in-

depth analysis of fixed and mobile resources to determine the best

deployment model and to ensure the Department is responding

effectively and efficiently. (Measure FF has funded the study only)

• Status: No New Update

• Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) – The CWPP is a

comprehensive risk analysis that addresses local target hazards and

includes a community-based action plan to mitigate threats, promote

preparedness activities, and ensure resiliency. It will serve as the

foundation and roadmap for the Departments work to prevent wildfire

and limit the spread when they ignite.

• Update:  Approved by City Council on May 16, 2023 (Item 1)

Waiting for signatures from Cal Fire.

https://cwpp-berkeley.hub.arcgis.com/

• Wildfire Prevention / Mitigation – Vegetation Management

Inspections –

• Updates: The success of the Chipper Program continues and the

service has been extended to December.

• WUI Interns – The Interns provide Berkeley Fire Department with a

trained, mobile and mission-specific workforce that is principally

assigned to monitor vegetative hazardous fuel on or near structures,

collect data, and identify reduction activities

• Updates: 7,053 properties have been inspected with 1,266 re-

inspections. If a resident is not home, a Door Hanger is left after

the inspection which provides each property a unique access

Item 2, Staff Report

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2023-05-16%206pm%20Special%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council.pdf
https://cwpp-berkeley.hub.arcgis.com/


code. The property owners are required to access the report to 

find out if they received violations or if they passed. 

• Safe Passage - The Fire Department has contracted with a vendor to

help the City of Berkeley meet requirements outlined in SB 99, AB 747,

and AB 1409, provide City with professional services in the areas of

traffic and evacuation modeling and planning, given various evacuation

and/or emergency response scenarios as determined by the City.

o Update: No new updates.

ii. Implementation & Metrics

• Outdoor Warning System – See attached Memo on the OWS System

Approach and Initial Findings

• There are a total of 13 of the 15 systems in place.

2. Measure GG Monthly Report

a. Budget Overview – No new update

b. Quarter 1 (July, August, September) report due in November

Quarter 2 (October, November, December) report due in February

Quarter 3 (January, February, March) report due in May

Quarter 4 (April, May, June) End of Year Report due in October

3. Fire Facilities Master Plan (FMP): Berkeley Fire Department stations are undersized, in poor

condition and in need of remodels or replacement. The Department initiated a long-term

replacement planning process to better understand infrastructure needs. This process will

provide the City leaders of today and tomorrow with actionable information ahead of future

infrastructure bond measures. (Measure FF has funded the study only)

a. Update:  Approved by City Council on May 16, 2023 (Item 2) . No new update

4. Department Hiring Activities

a. We are in the process of filling a vacant Office Specialist position in the Front Office at

our Administration Building.

b. We have begun the Fire Marshal recruiting process knowing that our current Fire

Marshal will be retiring within the next year.

c. Our second EMS Academy will start October 30th and we have started the recruitment

for our third EMS Academy.

d. Assistant Fire Chief and Battalion Chief internal promotion exams are also open for

applications.

e. We have also been approved to hire a second Deputy Fire Chief and anticipate that

application period will open in early November.

Item 2, Staff Report

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2023-05-16%206pm%20Special%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council.pdf


5. Grants

a. SAFER Grant Planning: We will be submitting for a SAFER grant to begin to address the

staffing recommendations that are outlined in the Standards of Coverage report. A team

has been working on the application for several months now and we are close to having

a final draft.

i. We have not heard anything official, but we do know that the grants have been

awarded and we were not on the list.

b. AFG Grant Submission: We applied for ~800k that would fund two additional full-time

on-site Human Performance Specialists for two years who would focus on nutrition and

behavioral health.

i. We were awarded this grant and in the process of scheduling interviews. The

two positions will focus on nutrition and the other on mental performance.

These positions will be funded for two-years and will round out our Human

Performance Team.

c. Cal Fire, Berkeley, and El Cerrito Grant: The City is applying for a $5 million grant to

perform education, outreach and direct aid to Fire Zone 2, 3 and to perform work in

Cerritos Canyon on both the Berkeley and El Cerrito/Kensington sides.

i. No New Updates. This grant was denied this go around.

d. CalFIRE Hills Emergency Forum (HEF) Grant: Berkeley Fire is submitting for about $2.8

million multi-agency mitigation grant that will provide funding for hazardous vegetation

management along key roadways in Fire Zone 2, mostly along all of Grizzly Peak. A lot of

work is going into this and the benefits will be a huge win for the City.

i. In collaboration with the Hillside Emergency Forum, East Bay Municipal Utility

District, and University of California Berkeley, City of Berkeley was awarded

$2.8M for the Grizzly Peak Strategic Fuel Break Collaboration. We are working

on getting the grant agreement in place before October, which means that work

could start in early 2024.

6. Call Volume Report

Fire Department Report by California Incident Type 

September 2023      

Fires – including Encampment 

Fires (structures, mobile 

properties, vegetation, rubbish, 

equipment, cooking, chimney, 

54 

Item 2, Staff Report



Encampment Fires (structures, 

warming/cooking, debris) 

52 

Explosion - no fire (overpressure 

ruptures, explosions) 

0 

Rescue & EMS (medical assist, 

vehicle accident  

935 

Hazardous Condition - no fire 

(combustible spills/leaks, 

chemical release, radioactive 

condition, electrical wiring 

problem, biological hazard, 

potential accident w/ 

building/aircraft/vehicles) 

51 

Service Calls (person in distress, 

water issue, smoke/odor 

problem, animal issue, public 

assist, cover 

assignment/standby) 

111 

Good Intent (canceled en-route, 

wrong location, nothing found, 

steam mistaken for smoke) 

127 

False Alarm Calls (malicious, 

malfunction, unintentional, 

biohazard scare) 

206 

Severe WX (lightening, wind 

storms) 

0 

Special Incidents (citizen 

complaints) 

8 

TOTAL 1,492 

Apparatus Count 

Unit Utilization 3,266 

Item 2, Staff Report



DFSC Action Tracker 

Date of DFSC Action Description Status 

No pending or active Council items. N/A 

Item 2, Staff Report



From: City of Berkeley Office of Emergency Services 
To: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 
RE: Outdoor Warning System (OWS) September 17, 2023 Test Approach and Initial Findings 
Date: October 5, 2023 

Introduction 
On September 17, 2023, Berkeley’s Office of Emergency Services conducted the 

first public test of the City’s new OWS network of emergency sirens.   
In September 2021, City Council approved a $1.97 million contract with Genasys 

Inc to build and install the 15-siren OWS, funded by Measure FF.  By September 2023, 
installation was complete at 10 out of 15 siren sites. An additional temporary siren was 
tested at an 11th location at Live Oak Park as part of a ribbon-cutting and 
demonstration at the 1923 Fire Commemoration event Fire Ready Fest.  

Test Objectives 

• Assess the functionality, audibility, and coverage of the newly installed outdoor
warning system sirens. Focus on audibility of siren tone and voice announcement
for people outdoors within ¼ mile, ½ mile and beyond of a siren site.

• Familiarize the community with the new system, enhancing public awareness
and preparedness for potential emergencies. Introduce system without creating
distress, confusion, or panic

Methodology 

• Public Outreach: citywide postcard, social media, traditional media, newsletter
announcements, Nixle, AC Alert, Emergency Map advisory, and build out of
pages on the City and BFD websites.

• Siren activation: Sirens were activated at 11 sites using a gentle test chime tone
and voice announcement. Siren activation was pre-scheduled at 10 sites and
activated live at 1 site.

• Public-facing “Did You Hear It?” Test Day survey: OES disseminated a survey
inviting community to identify their location during test and whether they heard
the tone and voice announcement.

• Analysis of geographic and qualitative survey data: OES sorted responses into
inside/outside categories, measured distance of responses from nearest siren at
¼ mile and ½ mile, and reviewed free responses comments regarding what
individuals planned to do if they heard a siren activate during an emergency
and what feedback they had on the system.

Initial Findings 

• Audibility and Coverage: Over 1700 individuals completed the “Did You Hear It?”
Siren Survey, providing OES with a significant amount of quantitative and
qualitative data to analyze. The tables below summarize responses for the 415
individuals who were outdoors during the siren test:

Item 2, Staff Report



Responses to “Did you hear the siren tone” among respondents 
who were outdoors during the test: 

Yes No Not Sure Total 
Respondents % 

Less than ¼ of a 
mile from siren 
location 

121(88%) 14(10%) 3(2%) 138 (100%) 

Between ¼-1/2 a 
mile from nearest 
siren location 

134(71%) 48(26%) 6(3%) 188(100%) 

Responses to “Did you hear the voice announcement” among respondents 
who were outdoors during the test: 

Yes No Barely/Could Not 
Clearly Hear the 

Words 

Total 
Respondents % 

Less than ¼ of a 
mile from siren 
location 

81(58%) 23(17%) 34(25%) 138(100%) 

Between ¼-1/2 a 
mile from nearest 
siren location 

57(30%) 67(36%) 64(34%) 188(100%) 

• Technical Issues: No technical issues were identified. Siren hardware and
software operated as expected. OES will implement regular systems training for
assigned operators.

• Public Response: Common comments in the free response field, included:
o Concerns about not being able to hear the test/request to increase

volume.
o Feedback that chime tone is not alarming enough for emergencies1 and

other comments that the gentle chime tone was appreciated.
o Requests for more siren locations/improved coverage in specific areas2.
o Difficulty discerning the voice message at a distance/indoors.
o Appreciation for testing and implementing the system.

Next Steps 
• Schedule the next siren test after the entire network is complete (likely in 2024).
• Continued discussion with host sites and other partners regarding test schedule.
• Continued public outreach on siren capabilities and use cases.

1 There appeared to be a common misunderstanding that the chime tone used for the test would also be used in 
emergencies. During emergencies, OES would use a more traditional and attention-grabbing “slow wail” siren tone. 
2 The installation of the four remaining sirens will improve coverage in SW Berkeley and areas near Strawberry 
Canyon and Westbrae. The activation of UC Berkeley’s sirens would also improve coverage near campus.  

Item 2, Staff Report



FY23 Year-To-Date Quarter 4 Measure FF

PROGRAM/VENDOR  AMOUNT FY23 BUDGET % USED NOTES

Administration 221,710 227,801 97.33%

SALARIES & BENEFITS            221,167 Salary & Benefits

VERIZON WIRELESS (EQUIPMENT) 543 Cell phone

Dispatch 183,919 188,537 97.55%

SALARIES & BENEFITS            140,900 Salary & Benefits

FEDERAL ENGINEERING, INC.              43,020 Dispatch Study

EMS 3,559,611 3,591,024 99.13%

ADVANCED TRAFFIC PRODUCTS              11,435 GPS High Priority Vehicle Kit

AIR EXCHANGE 5,606 Exhaust removal system for new ems 
supervisor

BETTER SOURCE INC 2,320 Task Chairs

BRAUN NW INC            513,026 Ambulances Purchase (2)

CDW-GOVERNMENT 6,418 Equipment

CLOTHING SUPPLIES 4,709 Supplies - Clothing

CONFERENCE EXPENSES              23,267 Conference expenses

FERRO CONCEPTS 208 Ambulance Equipment

GAUMARD SCIENTIFIC COMPANY INC            320,939 Training Simulators (Mannequin)

GRAINGER 809 Speed Bumps (5)

INT SVC - VEHICLE REPLACEMENTS            131,328 Vehicle Replacement Fund

INT SVC - VEHICLE FUEL/MAINT 3,654 Vehicle Fuel and Maintenance

KNOX CO.              19,234 Vehicle Upfitting

LEHR AUTO ELECTRIC              21,811 Vehicle Upfitting

MINUTEMAN PRESS 82 Materials/Printing

MOBILE LIVING TRUCK TOPS INC 5,088 Vehicle Upfitting

NICHOLAS CORP              62,384 Vehicle Upfitting

NIGHTOPS TACTICAL INC 1,457 Helmets

SALARIES & BENEFITS         2,268,226 Salary & Benefits

SIGTRONICS CORP 2,657 Office Supplies Headsets

STRYKER SALES CORPORATION              71,712 Ambulance Equipment

USIQ INC 5,287 Medical Support Team Equipment

VERIZON 1,944 Cell Phone

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. 6,227 Equipment

ZOLL MEDICAL CORP HEADQUATER              69,783 Monitors for new ambulances

Operations 1,218,861 1,265,483 96.32%

360 RESCUE LLC 1,822 Tech Rescue Equipment

ATLAS PHONES 346 Phones 

BERKELEY OFFICE INTERIOR 5,506 Office Desks

BETTER SOURCE INC 6,003 Task Chairs

BLAISDELL'S BUSINESS PRODUCTS 1,262 Misc. Office Supplies

BLESSO, JAMES BRADLEY              24,641 Safety Equipment

BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC -   Medical Supplies (New Amb)

CITYGATE ASSOCIATES, LLC              43,593 Standards of Coverage

CONFERENCE EXPENSES              13,209 Conference expenses

DELL 9,071 Monitors

FIRE SAFETY EDUCATION 3,308 Fire Safety Education Materials

1 of 3

Item 2, Staff Report



  

PROGRAM/VENDOR  AMOUNT FY23 BUDGET % USED NOTES

GANEY SCIENCE            548,277 

Project Management & SME must recal 
percentages;
Operations Admin: 38% (210,942)
              Dispatch: 12% (64,466)
                    EMS: 21% (115,332)  
                     WUI: 29% (157,537)

L.N. CURTIS & SONS              34,054 Tech Rescue Equipment

LEHR AUTO ELECTRIC              19,310 Vehicle Upfitting

MB JESSEE PAINTING INC                9,900 Commercial Interior Painting

MINUTEMAN PRESS                   178 Materials/Printing

MOBILE LIVING TRUCK TOPS INC                5,088 Vehicle Upfitting

NICHOLAS CORP            187,151 Vehicle Upfitting

SALARIES & BENEFITS              50,578 Salaries and Benefits

SIEGEL & STRAIN ARCHITECTS            204,529 Fire Facilities Master Planning Process

SILVA BUSINESS CONSULTING              36,410 Real Estate Consultants

THE FLOOR STORE                9,999 Floor Work

WATERS MOVING & STORAGE                1,896 Moving company

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A.                2,731 Equipment

Paramedics Tax 757,925 757,925 100.00%

. 757,925 No expenses yet

Training 83,818 189,226 44.30%

4IMPRINT INC                   589 Recruiting Materials

ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC              11,552 Firefighting/Training Equipment

CAL OES                   375 Training certificate

CRANDELL RESEARCH SOLUTIONS                7,500 Leadership/supervisor training

CONFERENCE EXPENSES                2,213 Conference expenses

DEPT. OF FORESTRY & FIRE PROTECTION                6,530 Training certificate

FIREFIGHTERS BOOKSTORE, INC                   105 Training Supplies

HEIMAN, INC                1,441 Training Maniquin

L.N. CURTIS & SONS              29,764 Tech Rescue Equipment

MINUTEMAN PRESS                   178 Materials/Printing

NOR/CAL FIRE PREVENTION OFFICERS                5,625 Membership to Professional Org.

PW Installation                1,161 Door Lock Installation

UNITED SITE SERVICES                2,287 Training Supplies

VARI SALES CORP                   833 Equipment

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A.              13,665 Equipment

WUI/FP 2,656,094 2,697,930 98.45%

72 HOUR CHEVROLET OF WATSO              44,613 Vehicle

ADVANCED TRAFFIC PRODUCTS                3,689 GPS High Priority Vehicle Kit

BLAISDELL'S BUSINESS PRODUCTS                1,730 Misc. Office Supplies

B&H Photo                   159 Misc. Office Supplies

CALTOPO                2,000 Vegetation Mapping Software

CONFERENCE EXPENSES                7,424 Conference expenses

CDW-GOVERNMENT                   175 Equipment

CHRISP CO              41,354 Safe Passages: Remove, replace sign 
panels and Curb painting red

CONNORS-HERM, HUNTER A              19,800 Professional Services Photo Library 
Production Team

DATAPROSE LLC                1,372 Inserts and Intermittent Mailings

DEPT. OF FORESTRY & FIRE PROTECTION                   825 Training certificate

FIRE ASIDE              29,705 Defensible Space Inspection/Chipper Day 
Software

2 of 3

Item 2, Staff Report



PROGRAM/VENDOR  AMOUNT FY23 BUDGET % USED NOTES

FORSTER & KROEGER LANDSCAPE MAINT.              90,434 Curbside Chipping Svcs

GENASYS INC            849,739 Outdoor Alerting System

INT SVC - CITY PKG PERMITS              34,376 Parking Permits

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 1,611 Books and Subscriptions

KNOX CO. 1,041 Vehicle Upfitting

LEHR AUTO ELECTRIC              11,173 Vehicle Upfitting

MINUTEMAN PRESS 430 Materials/Printing

NICHOLAS CORP              62,384 Vehicle Upfitting

ORKIN 1,400 Pest Service

PROTIVITI GOVERNMENT SERVICES, INC.              40,972 Temporary Staffing

SALARIES & BENEFITS         1,354,252 Salary & Benefits

Transfer Station Chipper Day Program 6,471 Disposal Charges for Chipper Program

VERIZON WIRELESS (AIRTIME) 9,342 Phone Service for Ambulances

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. 3,557 Equipment

WILDFIRE DEFENSE MESH              36,068 Home Hardening Vent/Gutter Mesh

Grand Total 8,681,938 8,917,925 97.35%

3 of 3

Item 2, Staff Report



Bronchospasms

Disaster & Fire Safety Commission
FY23 Review / FY24 Goals

Berkeley Fire Department

October 25, 2023



2

FY23 Year in Review
July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023



● Kept fire stations open – minimum 
staffing overtime

● Emergency communications system 
replacement – funded the first full 
replacement of all portable and mobile 
fire dept. radios

● Supported disaster preparedness -
EOC staff training; mass care planning 
& training, resumption of in-person 

CERT, Community Resilience Center 
(CRC) program relaunch & winter storm 

and mudslide response and recovery

Measure GG
FY23 Budget Review

3



4

FY23 ACTUALS

Program

FY 2023 

Original 
Budget 

FY 2023 

Revised 
Budget 

Q1 

July-Sept. 
2022

Q2

Oct.-Dec. 2022

Q3

Jan.-Mar. 2023

Q4

Apr.-June 2023

FY 2023 

Actuals

FY 2022 

Actuals 

Disaster Prep $987,644 $1,192,313 $82,565 $123,099 $106,357 $230,480 $542,502 $985,632 

FRALS $1,020,331 $817,355 $18,261 $141,455 $45,048 $48,146 $252,909 $196,474 

Minimum 

Staffing
$2,334,174 $3,928,776 $872,225 $1,413,378 $1,690,373 $665,749 $4,641,725 $2,842,962 

Radio 

Interoperability
$376,324 $611,324 $5,931 $578,075 $6,373 $7,391 $597,769 $688,913 

Training $301,473 $301,473 $75,500 $92,273 $84,839 $99,650 $352,261 $439,894 

Community 

Outreach -
HHCS

$256,287 $258,519 $29,917 $66,699 $64,074 $81,538 $242,228 $78,912 

Totals $5,276,233 $7,109,760 $1,084,398 $2,414,978 $1,997,064 $1,132,953 $6,629,393 $5,232,787 



5

1.19

1.58

1.34

0.01

0.81 0.78 0.74 0.67

0.37

0.88

0.67
0.76

1.13

1.83

2.22

2.69

2.99

0 0

0.59

1.77

1.51

1.91
1.74

1.25
1.37

2.18

2.79
2.7

2.46 2.45

3.03

2.61

4.29

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

4.5

5

FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

M
ill

io
n
s

Fiscal Year

Actual Overtime  by Fund

011 (General Fund) 140 (Measure GG)



● A programmatic budget 

proposal was presented to the 

DFSC and City Council

● Implemented detailed quarterly 

expenditure reports (20hrs)

● Implemented detailed end of year 

report (tonight) (40hrs)

● Encouraged & supported City 

Auditor to review Measure FF 

expenditures (~110hrs / FD Only)

Measure FF
FY23 Budget Review

7



FF Accomplishments
Willand Division

8

● Expansion: Hired staff, 
procured new vehicles

● Technology: DSI, citations, 
grants

● Programs: WUI 
Interns, Outreach, Chipper 
Day, Partnerships, COB camps

● Projects: CWPP, Safe 
Passages



9

Defensible Space Inspection (DSI)
Modernized program launch

Every inspection will generate a detailed report that explains 

what discoveries are violations vs recommendations.

o What: An easy to read evaluation of your property

o Why: Provides a roadmap to make your property more 

Fire Safe

o When: Occurs annually in Zone 2 & 3 (VHFDSZ)

o Where: 1:1 or sidewalk inspection & door hangar



Neighbors helping neighbors

● 749 total homes visited

● 309 resident conversations

● 204 residents completed the survey

● 2,940 door hangers left at residents’ homes

● 11 events (May – October)

Ambassador Program
Highlights

10



● 971 Pickups

● 2,355 cubic yards removed

● Survey Response Rate 45% / 4.9 Rating out 
of 5

● 79% said the program caused them to 
remove vegetation

“This is an excellent program! I will be able to 
remove a lot more brush from my property 

because I can do it on my time schedule rather 
than just the designated dates. Thank you so 

much for making it available!”

Chipper Day
Re-redesigned and expanded

11



In partnership with YouthWorks, the 

Department is providing amazing 

opportunities for local youth:

● 11 interns hired – primary duty is 

defensible space inspections

● 8,050 initial inspections

● 1,266 re-inspections

● Fuel mitigation projects started at 

Berkeley Tuolumne Camp with Echo & 

Cazadero in planning stages

WUI Intern Program
Highlights

12



● Repainted red curbs in Zone 3.

● Evacuation & Response Time 

Study will help drive strategic work 

within the fire zones.

Safe Passages

13



FF Accomplishments
OES / Fire Prevention

14

• Acquired and began installation of the 

Outdoor Warning System

• Developed a scope, contracted and 

launched the Evacuation Time 

and Response Study

• Stabilized staffing levels and 

improved succession planning



Completing installation and testing of 

the citywide system. Used for 

alerting residents who are 

outdoors:

● 13 of 15 Speakers Installed

● Inaugural test conducted on 

9/17/23

● Survey results: System performs 

as expected with audible tone 

detected outdoors within ¼-½ mile

Outdoor Warning System
Purchase, installation, testing

15



FF Accomplishments
Operations

16

• Launched new recruitment website 
with updated assets

• Completed vocational pathway from 
BHS, recruited and completed 
first Paramedic Academy

• Initiated recruitment for second 
Paramedic Academy

• Procured Mobile Command Software 
to support large event operations

• Improved emergency mobile water 
supply delivery capacity



● 3,000 gallon mobile water supply

● Supplements the Above Ground 

Water Delivery System

● Provides fast water in locations 

with inadequate water supply 

(Tilden Park)

● Driver training scheduled for early 

2024

Water Delivery Capacity
Quick water anywhere

17



FF Accomplishments
Office of the Fire Chief

18

• Stabilized payroll staff and 

eliminated a single point of failure

• Recruited and hired our first Public 

Information Officer

• Initiated several grant applications, 

successful in two; fuel mitigation 

(480k) and firefighter wellness (750k)



● Applied for a 5m grant with 

EBRPD, UC Berkeley and 

EBMUD.

● Fund hazardous vegetation 

removal along the Grizzly Peak 

evacuation corridor.

● Awarded 2.8m out of 5m request, 

Berkeley’s portion is 480k.

● Application for balance of 2.2m has 

been submitted – waiting results.

CalFIRE Grant

19



20

FY24 Budget, Programs, & Projects 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024



● First fiscal year with most 

vacancies filled, programs 

launched (or in pilot), equipment & 

software purchased.

● Focus to program 

refinement/completion and shifting 

to long-term, complex goals.

Measure FF
FY24: Looking ahead

21



● Analyzing Risk in our Fire Zones

● Historical Ecology Study

● Lahaina Fire Safety Package

● Zone 0 Adoption

● Resident Assistance Program

○ Defensible Space

○ Home Hardening

● Citation Process Implementation

● Community Partnerships

○ Berkeley Fire Safe Council

○ County Coordinator Grant

● Technology Enhancements

○ Intterra, Tablet Command, Fire Aside 

grants module

Priority Projects
Wildland Division

22



● Screening vents and gutters is one of the 

lowest cost, most effective home hardening 

techniques.

● Free fire rated 1/16” stainless mesh 

material for vents and gutters.

● Residents are responsible for installation 

and maintenance.

Pilot Resident 

Assistance Program 
for Home Hardening

23



● One-time assistance to help meet Defensible 

Space best practices, especially implementing 

Zone 0

● Requires a Defensible Space Inspection pre & 

post

● Reimbursement if you use a trusted 

landscaper/gardener or City contractors do the 

work

● Residents are responsible for on-going 

maintenance

Pilot Resident 

Assistance Program 
for Defensible Space

24



● Firehouse Ring Down Emergency Procurement

● Strengthen Regional Partnerships

● Highrise Operations

○ Training & Education

○ Equipment

○ Weight of response

○ Staffing

● Supervisor Academy

● Emergency Medical Services

○ Ambulance transition program

○ Deployment center

○ Recruitment and deployment of EMTs

○ Dispatch Needs Analysis

○ Pilot alternative response model

Priority Projects
Operations Division

25



● Planning and training staff to activate 
the Emergency Operations Center and 
disaster shelters to support the community 
during disasters (GG)

● Updating protocols, staff training, and 
community outreach for AC Alert, the 
Berkeley Emergency Map, and the Outdoor 
Warning System (FF/GG)

● Publishing the 2024 Local Hazard Mitigation 
Plan and using content in new community 
disaster trainings (GG)

● Coordinating responder and community 
readiness for Extreme Fire Weather (GG)

● Expanding community disaster education 
offerings to reach more Berkeleyans (GG)

● Better understanding challenges and risks of 
emergency movement through Berkeley with 
the Evacuation & Response Time Study 
(FF/GG)

Priority Projects
Office of Emergency Services

26



● 2023 - Initial Analysis: Local Hazard Mitigation 
Plan (SB99, AB747)

○ Access Impaired Neighborhoods Study 
(SB99)

○ Evacuation Route Assessment (AB 747)

● 2024 - Secondary Analysis: Establish 
evacuation time estimates and responder 

ingress estimates for emergency scenarios

● During this phase the City will also obtain results 

of the ADU analysis, measure the benefits to 

preemptive relocation during extreme fire 
weather, and better understand the impact of 

traffic calming on fire apparatus response 
times

Evacuation
and Response Time Study

27

Courtesy: KOAT News, Lahaina, HI



● Air Traffic Control

● Leading on Wildfire Initiatives

● Fire Facilities Acute / Long-Term

○ Headquarters

○ Ambulance Deployment Center

○ Regional Training Center

○ Fire Station Remodel/Rebuilds

○ Dispatch Re-Design

● Vision 0

○ Bike Plan

○ Evaluate Apparatus Design

○ Project Review Process (PW Collab)

● Grants Management

● Enhancing Command Structure / Succession

● Improve Data Analytics

Priority Projects
Office of the Chief

28



29

Wildfire Risk & Urgency of Action
A Review of the Wildfire Risk to Berkeley



Climate Change

30

572,000

4,000,000

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

1932-1999 2000-2020

# Acres Burned



31

There is a History of Significant Fires 

in the Fire Zone

Fire in the East Bay Hills is Cyclical 

every 20yrs

Fire Gap

1905 -

1923 18yrs

1946 23yrs

1970 24yrs

1991 21yrs

2023 32yrs

Predictable is Preventable



Are a product of…

● Topography

● Weather

● Fuel (Vegetation & Structures)

Fire Spread Rates

32



The East Bay Hills rise from Sea Level to 

approx. 1,700ft at some points on Grizzly 
Peak

The hills have many canyons that have a 

particular impact on fire behavior.

Canyons draw air from the canyon bottom, 

creating strong upslope drafts. They can also 
channel offshore winds – even perpendicular 
to the canyon – into strong downslope winds.

This effect can result in extreme fire behavior 
and can be very dangerous.

Topography

33



Weather: Strong Seasonal Diablo Winds
● Air from 4000’ is compressed as it descends to sea level

● The compression warms and drys the air

● As its forced over mountains and through canyons, it accelerates

● Historically October is most 
dangerous as fuels are at their driest

34



35

T
H

E
N

N
O

W
Fuel: Grasslands to Urban Forest



High Density = risk of entire community 
loss is very high due to structure-to-

structure fire spread

36

Category SSD Map Color

High Density <25ft

Moderate Density 25 – 50ft

Low Density >50ft

Fuel: Structures Separation Distance



Density increases risk of rapid fire spread
Most of Berkeley hills are 

high density

Fuel: Structures/Acre

37

HU/ac Risk Category Map Color

> 4 1 - 2

2 – 4 1 - 2

< 2 3 - 4



38

"All-Hazards" Disaster Profile
Berkeley must remain prepared for...



● Earthquake

● Wildland-Urban Interface Fire

● Flood

● Tsunami

● Landslide

● Extreme heat

● Poor air quality

● Sea-level rise

● Plus secondary effects including:
○ Utility disruption
○ Hazardous materials release

Berkeley's Hazard 
Landscape

39



● Smart decisions to reduce our 

risks ahead of time

● Government capacity to provide 

a coordinated response

● Community connection and 

resilience

Disaster Preparedness 
Means...

40



44

Emergency Services are Stretched Thin
Short & Long-Term Goals to Stabilize



Fire Service Mission Expansion

45

Structure Fires (Low Rise) Structure Fires Structure Fires Structure Fires Structure Fires

Fire Prev ention Fire Prev ention Fire Prev ention Fire Prev ention Fire Prev ention

Emergency Medical Emergency Medical Emergency Medical Emergency Medical

Disaster Preparedness Disaster Preparedness Disaster Preparedness Disaster Preparedness

Hazardous Materials Hazardous Materials Hazardous Materials Hazardous Materials

Wildland Firefighting Wildland Firefighting Wildland Firefighting Wildland Firefighting

Weapons of Mass Destruction Weapons of Mass Destruction Weapons of Mass Destruction

Vehicle Ex trication Vehicle Ex trication Vehicle Ex trication

Technical Rescue Technical Rescue Technical Rescue

Activ e Shooter Activ e Shooter

Water Rescue Swimmer Water Rescue Swimmers

Routine Urban Interface Firefighting

Vocational Education

Boat Operations

Pandemic Response

Community Response Medicine

EV Fires & Battery  Management

HighRise/Tall Building Firefightng

1980 1990s 2000 2010 2015-2020

● Mission expansion has been driven by 
deployment, fiscal responsibility, our well 
intentioned “can do” attitude, and “who else 
would go”?

● Slow Boil: extra responsibilities come with 
added training, equipment, vehicle and 
facility requirements.

● To remain proficient, firefighters must spend 
an impossible number of hours per day 
training.



Call Volume Trend

46

● Steadily trending up

● EMS = Approx. 60% of call volume

● Fire must begin to measure 

performance to help leaders 

identify a need for prevention 

strategies or additional, re-positioned 

or alternate resources

● The level or fire and EMS protection 

the community receives is a decision 

that City Council will need to make

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

Total Call Volume EMS Only



Response Times

47

● National Fire Protection Association 
Standards

● Standards of Coverage 
Recommendations

● Path Forward

○ Adopt a response time policy

○ Divert calls to non-emergency 
resources

○ False fire alarm fee program

○ Add ambulances



Density

48

● Berkeley is a dense, urban mini-
metro.

● Of the top 51 most populated cities 
in California, Berkeley ranks 
second most dense, behind San 
Francisco

● This helps to explain the 
abnormally busy emergency 
response system, diversity of 
incident types, and sluggish 
response times.

Density Pop City Pop Sq Miles Density

1 4 San Francisco 873,965 46.91 18,630

2 51 Berkeley 124,321 10.43 11,919

3 13 Santa Ana 310,227 27.34 11,347

4 31 Garden Grove 171,949 17.96 9,574

5 7 Long Beach 466,742 50.71 9,204

6 1 Los Angeles 3,898,747 469.49 8,304

7 8 Oakland 440,646 55.93 7,878

8 22 Oxnard 202,063 26.53 7,616

9 23 Huntington Beach 198,711 27 7,359

10 46 Santa Clara 127,151 18.28 6,955



Critical Call Analysis

50

● Of the 16,000 calls that were run in 

CY2022, there were greater than 

1,200 medical calls where time 

was critical, and an ALS 

intervention was performed

● A delayed response time could 

have a negative impact on patient 

outcome



Cardiac Arrest Survival Rate

51

● One measurement of system 

performance

● 2015-2020 Return of Spontaneous 

Circulation (ROSC)

BER ALA CA NAT

Survival 13.4% 9.7% 9.2% 10.2%

Berkeley Performance +4% +4.2% +3.2%

No 

Deficits
11.3% 7.3% 7.6% 8.2%

Berkeley Performance +4% +3.7% +3.1%



Unit Hour Utilization
Fire Engines

52

● UHU is calculated using the number of 
responses and duration of the 
responses. Shows the % of time a 
resource is committed to an active 
incident. 

● When UHU > 30% over multiple 
consecutive hours, other 
responsibilities, such as training, do not 
get completed. 

● The table shows a unit-hour utilization 
summary for the City’s engine 
companies.

● The busiest engines are listed first. 
Engine 5 has two hours over 50% 
utilization and 11 consecutive hours 
over 30% utilization.



Unit Hour Utilization
Ambulances

53

● The table illustrates a UHU summary for the City’s 

emergency medical service transport ambulances. 

● Medic 5 (M5), M2, and M1 each have several 
hours over 50% utilization.

● Medic 5 and Medic 2 each have one hour over 
60% utilization and at least 13 consecutive hours 

at or above 30% utilization.

● Berkeley’s ambulance UHU percentages are as 
high as ambulances in some of the busiest 

metro cities on the west coast.

● The system is in immediate need of additional 

ambulances and a dispatch center capable of 
diverting non-acute calls to non 911 resources.



54

Wrap Up
How Did We Get Here & Where Are We Going



● Well intentioned leaders taking on more 
responsibility without impact analysis

● Fell short in long-term planning (& 
action), including staffing & deployment, 
facilities, wildfire risk, climate change, 
and development/density.

● Inadequate administrative & support 
staffing for a mini-metro department.

How Did We Get Here

55



● Analyze Community Risk

○ Community Wildfire Protection Plan

○ Standards of Coverage

○ Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

○ Evacuation and Response Time Study

● Align Department to Risk

○ Administrative Re-organization

○ EMS Re-Design

○ Wildland Division

● Long-Term Planning

○ Facilities Master Plan

○ Dispatch Needs Assessment

○ Employee Education/Development

○ Accreditation Review

Where Are We Going?

56



Bronchospasms

Questions & Discussion



Internal 

Internal 
 

 
DISASTER AND FIRE SAFETY COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

September 27, 2023 
7:00 PM 

Fire Department Division of Training Classroom – 997 Cedar Street  
 
 
Present: Mike Wilson, Andy Katz, Weldon Bradstreet, Shirley Dean, Robert Kinosian, Theo 
Gordon, Greg Murphy, Harrison Raine 
Absent: Todd Darling  
Staff: Keith May, Leah Greenbaum, Sarah Lana  
Public: 9 attendees 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Preliminary Matters 
Call to Order 
 
Meeting called to order at 7:06 pm 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Motion to approve minutes: G. Murphy  
Second: T. Gordon 
Vote: 5 Ayes: M. Wilson, A. Katz, W. Bradstreet, S. Dean, R. Kinosian, T. Gordon, G. Murphy, 
H. Raine; 0 Noes; 1 Absent: T. Darling; 0 Abstain 
 
Raine arrived at 7:09 pm 
 
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters 
Public comment: 1 
 
 

1. Chairperson’s Report 
 

2. Fire Department Staff Report* 
 

 
 



Internal 
   

Internal 
 

Consent Items 
 

3. Minutes of August 2, 2023* 
From: Commission Secretary 
Recommendation: Approve the draft minutes of the August 2, 2023 Regular 
Meeting. 
 
Motion to approve minutes: S. Dean  
Second: G. Murphy 
Vote: 5 Ayes: M. Wilson, A. Katz, W. Bradstreet, S. Dean, R. Kinosian, T. 
Gordon, G. Murphy, H. Raine; 0 Noes; 1 Absent: T. Darling; 0 Abstain 
 

4. Minutes of September 6, 2023* 
From: Commission Secretary 
Recommendation: Approve the draft minutes of the September 6, 2023 Special 
Meeting. 
 
Motion to approve minutes: S. Dean  
Second: T. Gordon 
Vote: 5 Ayes: M. Wilson, A. Katz, W. Bradstreet, S. Dean, R. Kinosian, T. 
Gordon, G. Murphy, H. Raine; 0 Noes; 1 Absent: T. Darling; 0 Abstain 
 
 

 
Action Items 
 

5. Request that the Commission forward the Janice Thomas’ August 27, 2023 
letter “RE: State Fire Marshal’s Recommendation For Panoramic Hill” to City 
Council, UC Berkeley President, and the UC President and Board * (Dean)  
Public comments: 2 
 
After discussion, Dean pulled this item from the action calendar and will draft a 
letter of support for the Commission to consider at the next meeting.  
 
At the meeting, Ms. Thomas distributed printed materials to commissioners. 
Those materials were added to the online agenda packet after the meeting.   
 

Discussion Items 
6. Staff presentation on 2024 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan update process* (Staff) 

Public comments: 3 
 
 
 



Internal 
Internal 

Internal 
 

7. Discussion on impact of increased density due to new developments along 
Shattuck/Adeline (Darling)  
 
Chair moved this item to next meeting.  
 

8. Discussion on biolabs and other large facilities, hazardous materials contained 
therein, and potential emergency response impacts and challenges (Dean) 
 
Dean pulled item and requested Commission consider it as an action item at 
the next meeting. Dean will draft attachment for consideration at the next 
meeting.  
 

9. Discussion to write a Commendation to Chief Sprague for the Master Facilities 
Plan (Dean) 
 
Dean pulled item and requested Commission consider it as an action item at 
the next meeting. Dean will draft attachment for consideration at the next 
meeting. 
 

10. Update on the City’s progress of evaluating and regulating non-ductile concrete 
structures* (Murphy) 
 
 

Work Group Reports 

• Plan & Budget Oversight  
• Home Hardening  
• Wildland Urban Interface 
• Safe Passages  
• Community Outreach  

No workgroup report outs—pushed to next meeting due to time.  

11. Future Agenda Items and Next Steps 
• Discussion regarding concerns about the recent State Housing and 

Community Development ruling which would increase density in Fire Zones 
2 and 3 (Dean) 

• Discussion on impact of increased density due to new developments along 
Shattuck/Adeline (Darling)  

• Request that the Commission forward the Janice Thomas’ August 27, 2023 
letter “RE: State Fire Marshal’s Recommendation For Panoramic Hill” to City 
Council, UC Berkeley President, and the UC President, City of Oakland, and 
Board of Forestry with a letter of support from the Commission  (Dean)  

• Discussion on biolabs and other large facilities, hazardous materials 
contained therein, and potential emergency response impacts and 
challenges (Dean) 



Internal 
Internal 

Internal 
 

• Discussion to write a Commendation to Chief Sprague for the Master 
Facilities Plan (Dean) 
 

 

Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned at 9:05pm 

 
Motion to adjourn: G. Murphy 
Second: S. Dean  
Vote: 5 Ayes: M. Wilson, A. Katz, W. Bradstreet, S. Dean, R. Kinosian, T. 
Gordon, G. Murphy, H. Raine.  0 Noes; 1 Absent: T. Darling; 0 Abstain 

 
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to 
Keith May, kmay@berkeleyca.gov  510-981-5508.  
 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part 
of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: E-mail 
addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required but, if included in any 
communication to a City board, commission, or committee, will become part of the public record. If you do 
not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver 
communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission, 
or committee. If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not 
include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, 
commission, or committee for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the commission regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection at Berkeley Fire Department located at 2100 Martin Luther 
King Jr. Way Berkeley, CA. 
 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair-accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please 

contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days 
before the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

I hereby certify that the agenda for this regular/special meeting of the Berkeley City’s Disaster and Fire 
Safety Commission was posted at the front of the Division of Training, 997 Cedar Street, as well as on the 
City’s website, three days prior to the scheduled Commission meeting.  
 
 
SECRETARY SIGNATURE 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:kmay@berkeleyca.gov


Internal 

CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION 

AWARDED TO 

Steve Greenberg 
From the Berkeley Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 

In gratitude for and recognition of Steve’s decades of service in advancement of 
disaster preparedness in the City of Berkeley. With skill and generosity, Steve has mentored a 
multitude of individuals to better prepare for and respond to large-scale emergencies, tirelessly 

led his neighborhood disaster group, and taught Berkeley CERT classes,  
potentially saving countless lives.   

 
Approved by vote and signed      /    /2023:  

Weldon Bradstreet, Chair 



Internal 
Item 5, Dean 

October 25, 2023 

To:  Chair Bradstreet, Vice Chair Murphy and Members of the Disaster and Fire Safety 
Commission (DFSC) 
From: Commissioner Shirley Dean 

Re:  Provide a recommendation to City Council on the development of a plan that includes a 
feasibility study and identification of funding sources for constructing an emergency secondary 
access road on Panoramic Hill (Dean)* 

This item is to obtain DFSC approval to send to the City Council that they approve the 
development of a plan including a feasibility study and fundings sources for constructing an 
emergency secondary access road on Panoramic Hill.  Such a plan could well include city 
discussions with the UC-Berkeley and Alameda County and should also continued contact with 
the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission as well as other related Berkeley commissions. 

Background: 
 This is an urgent matter as all information indicates that wildfires are currently more 
frequent and intense than in previous years.  Additionally, we also are hearing that the likelihood 
of a major earthquake along the Hayward fault which bisects Berkeley is long overdue.  
Panoramic Hill is the only neighborhood in the City within Fire Zone 3 and is officially 
recognized as having residential development with only one way out.  The city has recognized 
these factors for years but has not fully addressed the area’s evacuation problems while 
increasing density on the Hill and throughout the city.  Today, Berkeley is the second most dense 
city in the list of 51 largest cities in the State of California.  Berkeley is exceeded only by San 
Francisco.  We are more dense than Los Angeles and San Diego, but further we are uniquely 
bisected by a  major earthquake fault, and have numerous officially designated landslide areas 
and liquefaction zones within a tiny 10 square mile area.  
 The city has in part recognized the problem of evacuation by enacting parking restrictions 
in the Panoramic Hill area, but enforcement has always been a problem and enacting further 
restrictions is not the answer as buildings have been constructed without on-site parking spaces.  
Further,  just recently at the urging of the State Department of Community Development the city 
approved new regulations to allow the construction of both an ADU and a JADU on each parcel 
in the High Severity Fire Rise Areas (Zones 2 and 3)  in the City.  This may change when an 
evacuation study is completed sometime next year, but in the meantime, such ADUs and JADUs 
without parking on-site could be constructed.  New construction may or may not happen, but if it 
does, it cannot be undone in the future and adds to the serious problems that already exist. 
 In the past, a emergency apparatus only access road (the Jordan Trail) was constructed.  It 
is limited to Fire/emergency equipment only, not evacuation.  A secondary access road needs to 
be built because it is essential to keep the fire/emergency equipment road open at all times.  The 
secondary road does not need to be paved with asphalt and curbs, as a city street might be 
constructed but it must be constructed to provide a way out for the safety of residents but also to 
ensure that the road which provides basic emergency response is kept clear to provide increased 
fire fighting response in the event of wildfire and earthquake.  Adequate response can help slow 
the expansion of a wildfire thus benefiting both residents of the Hill but all residents in the City.  



Internal 
Item 5, Dean 

However, no matter what a secondary access road, for evacuation purposes must be constructed 
and maintained for the sake of saving lives of those residing and visiting Panoramic Hill. Recent 
changes for the South Sode make westward evacuation from the Hill even more problematic.   
 For the sake of public safety, we must take action right now.  
 

 

 



Internal
Item 6, Dean 

October 25, 2023 

To:  Chair Bradstreet, Vice Chair Murphy and Members of the Disaster and Fire Safety 
Commission (DFSC) 

From: Commissioner Shirley Dean 

Re:  Provide recommendation to Council regarding separation of mixed-use pedestrian and e-
bike pathways  

I have been advised by members of the public regarding plans for mixed use pedestrian and e-
bike pathways in areas such as the Ohlone Greenway and around Cesar Chavez Park on the 
waterfront.  The expressed concerns involve public safety especially of collisions with 
pedestrians who are elderly, disabled, pregnant, pushing a stroller or have a small child in tow. 

E-bikes come in three classifications.  Class 1 requiring the most help from a rider while still
offering a relaxing recreation experience for the rider.   Class 2 requires less help and Class 3
which requires the least help from the rider, and which can reach speeds of around 28 miles per
hour.  Class 3 e-bikes are generally viewed as more a motor vehicle than a bicycle.  Class 3 are
the e-bikes that raise the most concerns. It is generally recognized that Class 3 bikes can and are
regulated.

The essential question that I am putting before the Commission is whether pathways in Berkeley 
hat mix pedestrians with e-bikes, particularly Class 3 bikes, be regulated.  E-bikes, particularly 
Class 1 are popular and offer the rider a nice recreational experience.  I do not have data 
regarding collisions, but common sense tells me that collisions are likely in a mixed-use 
scenario.    One such action which the Commission should consider is that pathways should be 
separated – one for pedestrians and the other for e-bikes so that each group can have the 
recreational experience that each group is seeking. Also, if any separated path merges with or 
crosses a street, highly visible cautionary signs need to be posted.  In addition, a flyer informing 
young people about such requirements regarding age and Helmut requirements for e-bikes can be 
distributed by both public and private schools.  

The Commission should notify the Council of this recommendation. 



Internal 
Item 7, Dean 

 

October 25, 2023 

To:  Chair Bradstreet, Vice Chair Murphy and Members of the Disaster and Fire Safety 
Commission (DFSC) 
From: Commissioner Shirley Dean 

Re:  Request to merge action and discussion calendars under the title “Items for Discussion and 
Possible Action” 

Currently our agenda divides items that we are considering into two groups:  Discussion 
and Action..  We have received requests from the public to merge these two groups under the title 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION.  We were told that this is done by other 
commissions.  I checked recent agendas of the Planning Commission and confirmed this.  The 
Planning Commission agenda states the following: 

AGENDA ITEMS: All agenda items are for discussion and possible ac�on. Public Hearing items 
require hearing prior to Commission ac�on. 

DFSC members should discuss this change and act to change our agenda format effec�ve at our  
Next regular mee�ng.  This will be more efficient specifically  whenever ac�on needs to be taken without 
delay and whenever the  discussion about a specific mater unexpectedly turns out to indicate an ac�on 
should occur. 

 

 

 

 



Planning Commission 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

This meeting is held in a wheelchair accessible location. 

Wednesday, June 7, 2023  North Berkeley Senior Center 
5:30 PM      1901 Hearst Avenue, Berkeley 

See “MEETING PROCEDURES” below. 

All written materials identified on this agenda are available on the Planning Commission 
webpage: https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions/planning-
commission 

PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

1. Roll Call:  Merker, Blaine, appointed by Councilmember Kesarwani, District 1
Vincent, Jeff, Chair, appointed by Councilmember Taplin, District 2 
Moore III, John E. “Chip”, appointed by Councilmember Bartlett, District 3 
Oatfield, Christina, appointed by Councilmember Harrison, District 4 
Mikiten, Elisa, appointed by Councilmember Hahn, District 5 
Marthinsen, Emily, appointed by Councilmember Wengraf, District 6 
Twu, Alfred, appointed by Councilmember Robinson, District 7 
Hauser, Savlan, appointed by Councilmember Droste, District 8 
Ghosh, Barnali, Vice Chair, appointed by Mayor Arreguín 

2. Land Acknowledgement:  The City of Berkeley recognizes that the community we live in
was built on the territory of xučyun (Huchiun (Hooch-yoon)), the ancestral and unceded
land of the Chochenyo (Cho-chen-yo)-speaking Ohlone (Oh-low-nee) people, the
ancestors and descendants of the sovereign Verona Band of Alameda County.This land
was and continues to be of great importance to all of the Ohlone Tribes and descendants
of the Verona Band. As we begin our meeting tonight, we acknowledge and honor the
original inhabitants of Berkeley, the documented 5,000-year history of a vibrant community
at the West Berkeley Shellmound, and the Ohlone people who continue to reside in the
East Bay. We recognize that Berkeley’s residents have and continue to benefit from the
use and occupation of this unceded stolen land since the City of Berkeley’s incorporation
in 1878. As stewards of the laws regulating the City of Berkeley, it is not only vital that we
recognize the history of this land, but also recognize that the Ohlone people are present
members of Berkeley and other East Bay communities today. The City of Berkeley will
continue to build relationships with the Lisjan Tribe and to create meaningful actions that
uphold the intention of this land acknowledgement.

1 of 125

Item 7, Dean,
Example of Planning 
Commission Agenda

https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions/planning-commission
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions/planning-commission


Page 2 of 5 

3.Order of Agenda:  The Commission may rearrange the agenda or place items on the
Consent Calendar.

4.Public Comment:  Comments on subjects not included on the agenda. Speakers may
comment on agenda items when the Commission hears those items.  (See “Public
Testimony Guidelines” below):

5.Planning Staff Report:  In addition to the items below, additional matters may be reported
at the meeting.  Next Commission meeting:  July 5, 2023.

6.Chairperson’s Report:  Report by Planning Commission Chair.

7.Committee Reports:  Reports by Commission committees or liaisons.  In addition to the
items below, additional matters may be reported at the meeting.

8.Approval of Minutes:  Approval of Draft Minutes from the meeting on May 3, 2023.

9.Future Agenda Items and Other Planning-Related Events:   None.

AGENDA ITEMS:  All agenda items are for discussion and possible action.  Public Hearing items 
require hearing prior to Commission action. 

 10. 

11. 

12. 

Action: 

Recommendation: 

Written Materials: 
Presentation: 

Action:  
Recommendation: 

Written Materials: 
Presentation: 

Discussion:  
Recommendation: 

Planning Commission 2023-2024 Work Plan 
Subcommittee Selection 
Establish the Work Plan Subcommittee and appoint three 
Planning Commissioners by a vote. 
N/A. 
N/A. 

Public Hearing: State Law Technical Edits Revised  
Review the revised proposed zoning ordinance amendments 
to update the BMC in accordance with state laws related to 
special needs housing, employment housing, family day care 
home and parking as well as additional non-substantive 
edits. Take public comment, discuss draft ordinance 
amendments, and make a recommendation to City Council. 
Attached. 
N/A. 

Waterfront Specific Plan  
Receive a presentation on the status of the Waterfront 
Specific Plan (WSP), take public comment, and provide 
feedback to staff. The WSP, if adopted, would guide future 
civic decisions related to nature, recreation, and 
development at the Berkeley Waterfront. 

2 of 125

Item 7, Dean, ,
Example of Planning 
Commission Agenda



ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS:  In compliance with Brown Act regulations, no action may be 
taken on these items.  However, discussion may occur at this meeting upon Commissioner 
request. 

Information Items: 
• May 10, 2023 – North Berkeley BART Open House - Community Meeting #2,

https://berkeleyca.gov/construction-development/land-use-development/general-plan-
and-area-plans/ashby-and-north-berkeley

• May 18, 2023 – Southside Zoning Modification Project presented at the Design Review
Committee (continued to June 15, 2023)

o Agenda: https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-
agendas/May_2023_Linked.pdf

o Minutes: https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-
minutes/2023-05-18_DRC_Draft%20Summary.pdf

• Kala Art Institute’s Print Public Municipal Artist in Residence Program,
http://www.kala.org/residencies/print-public-residency-program/

Communications: General. 

Late Communications: (Received after the packet deadline):  

Late Communications: (Received and distributed at the meeting): 

ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting Procedures 

Public Testimony Guidelines: 
Speakers are customarily allotted up to two minutes each and may not cede their time to another 
speaker. The Commission Chair may limit the number of speakers and the length of time allowed 
to each speaker to ensure adequate time for all items on the Agenda.  To speak during Public 
Comment or during a Public Hearing, please line up behind the microphone.  Customarily, 
speakers are asked to address agenda items when the items are before the Commission rather 

13. 

Written Materials: 
Presentation: 

Discussion:  
Recommendation: 

Written Materials: 
Presentation: 

N/A. 
N/A. 

Zoning Amendments to Support Businesses 
Receive a presentation on proposed zoning amendments to 
support Berkeley businesses, take public comment, provide 
feedback and direction to staff, and convene a Subcommittee 
to provide detailed review of the proposed amendments for 
Planning Commission consideration. 
Attached. 
N/A. 

Page 3 of 5 Item 7, Dean, ,
Example of Planning 
Commission Agenda

https://berkeleyca.gov/construction-development/land-use-development/general-plan-and-area-plans/ashby-and-north-berkeley
https://berkeleyca.gov/construction-development/land-use-development/general-plan-and-area-plans/ashby-and-north-berkeley
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-agendas/May_2023_Linked.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-agendas/May_2023_Linked.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-minutes/2023-05-18_DRC_Draft%20Summary.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-minutes/2023-05-18_DRC_Draft%20Summary.pdf
http://www.kala.org/residencies/print-public-residency-program/


Item 7, Dean (excerpt from 
Commissioner's Manual, page 57-58)



Berkeley Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 
WORK PLAN – FY 2023-2024 

Mission Statement 

The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission serves as the public oversight body for 

Berkeley’s Measure GG and Measure FF funds, charged with reviewing the budget on a 

regular basis to ensure that the funds are spent in accordance with the intent of the voter 

approved measures, recommending the appropriate annual increase to the tax rate, and 

recommending new programs and policy positions requiring Measure GG and Measure 

FF funding. The ultimate goal of the Commission is to increase community safety, 

resilience, and education for community disaster preparedness. The Commission also  

reviews and makes recommendations on items referred by the City Council or other 

Commissions. 

Summary of FY 2023-2024 Work Plan Activities 
 Name Activities Expected Outcomes Commissioners 

1. Plan &
Budget
Oversight

BFD Staff 
Contact: D. 
Sprague/ K. 
May 

a) Review BFD materials
on a quarterly basis

b) Meet monthly as
Finance ad hoc
working group with FD
to review monthly
materials

c) Track financial issues
related to FF & GG
with the City Council

a) Budget development plan
b) Provide input of quarterly budget
c) Provide annual budget

recommendation City Council on FF
& GG

d) Provide recommendation to City
Council on annual GG increases

e) Provide City Council
recommendation for midyear
program corrections (ad hoc)

Rotating group of 
commissioners 
(based on 
availability) on a 
quarterly basis 
hosted by Chair / 
Chief 

2. Home
hardening

BFD Staff 
Contact: D. 
Green 

a) Lead review of
monthly inspection
report

b) Review sessions with
Fire Marshal 

c) Listening sessions
with Building
Department

a) Provide recommendation to City
Council on annual inspection
program targets

b) Provide recommendation to City
Council on building code
modifications for fire safety (ad hoc)

• G. Murphy
• W. Bradstreet
• S. Dean

3. Wildland-
urban
interface
BFD Staff
Contact: D.
Green

a) Review vegetation
management program

b) Discuss grant
applications and
planned project
allocations

a) Provide recommendation to City
Council on vegetation management
program

b) Knowledge of grant funding
distribution

• T. Gordon
• H. Raine
• T. Darling

Item 8, Bradstreet



GOAL Activities Expected Outcomes Commissioners 

4. Safe
passages

BFD Staff 
Contact: D. 
Green / S. 
Lana 

a) Review previous safe
passages program
and its component
parts (parking
restrictions, red curb,
notification alerts,
evacuation planning)

b) Meet with community
members for intake

c) Absorb CWPP report

a) Restart of Safe Passages Program
b) Formation of team/committee to

develop plan
c) Provide recommendation to City

Council on draft revised Safe
Passages program

• T. Gordon
•
• T. Darling

5. Community
Outreach

BFD Staff 
Contact: S. 
Lana/ D. 
Dailey 

a) Work with FD on
educating the public
on disaster and fire
safety programs

b) Coordinate / alert
commission of
potential outlets for
information

c) Follow / facilitate /
support meetings with
community groups

d) Follow to conclusion
external emergency
speaker system

e) Track Commission
recommendations /
status

a) Provide recommendation to City
Council on mid-program changes to
current communications plan

b) Provide City Council
recommendation into annual
communications plan

• 
• G. Murphy
• W. Bradstreet

Item 8, Bradstreet



Internal
Item 9, Dean 

October 25, 2023 

To:  Chair Bradstreet, Vice Chair Murphy and Members of the Disaster and Fire Safety 
Commission (DFSC) 
From: Commissioner Shirley Dean 

Re:  Clarification of recently approved ordinance on ADUs and JADUs 

Recently the City Council at the urging of the State Department of Community Development 
approved an ordinance that allowed both an ADU and a JADU on parcels in Fire Zones 2 and 3. 
The ordinance is very complicated and while  the Council also approved reviewing it after an 
evacuation study is completed next year, various additional structures could be constructed in 
Fire Zones 2 and 3 that will not he reversed even if found to be problematic.  It is, therefore, 
important to understand specifically what was approved as of now.  In addition, if the DFSC 
determines that there is an issue that needs to be immediately addressed by the Council, it may 
do so once some questions have been clarified.   

It is also important for the members of the Commission to review the report that Chief Sprague 
submitted to the Council on this matter.  If Commissioners don’t have that report, they need to 
inform the Secretary of the Commission to send them a copy for their review of this item. 

Sone questions that need to be clarified: 

1. Parking required for new ADUs and JADUs on streets where existing street parking is
limited:  Since it does not appear that parking will be required for either or both new
ADUs and JADUs, will the City provide enforcement of violations of street parking
regulations that are already in place on streets where this new development is proposed?
The DFSC has recommended limited street parking enforcement to the Council in the
past without success.  How will these issues impact by-right approval of this new
development?

2. Parking required for new ADUs and JADUs on narrow streets where street parking
regulations don’t exist:  Currently, there is a process for establishing street parking
regulations on streets that are so narrow or have turns in them that impact the response of
emergency response vehicles – not just fire-fighting vehicles.   What will happen if new
ADU and JADU development is proposed on such streets?  Will the development be put
on hold until new street parking regulations process is complete or is the street parking
problem just ignoed?

3. What are all the exemptions in calculating the distance between structures?  A separation
of 8 ft between structures is recommended/required , but apparently such items as bay
window extension into the set back is exempted.  Are there other exemptions because in
the past it was possible to build wooden walkways within a required setback to the extent
that reduced the actual setback to 0 for that property.  What is the rule now?



Internal
Item 9, Dean 

4. Are accessory buildings subject to the 8ft separation rule?  Under the new ordinance
accessory buildings can be converted to ADUs in the future.  If not subject to the 8 ft
separation rule will the conversion to an ADU be allowed?

5. When ADUs nd JADUs in the front yard are approved, what is the separation
requirement?  It is said that front  setback will be as far from the front as possible.

6. While neighbors will receive notice of new developments, they will also be advised that
their concerns won’t legally matter. It is good that unneighborly comment may result in
early design improvements, but it is unclear just what the process for approval of new
development is.

There may be other questions that Commission members have, and they can be added during the 
discussion of this item.   The report submitted by Chief Sprague is important particularly 
regarding the separation issue.  It is essential that DFSC members fully understand the gritty 
details since he identifies that structure separation is a key factor in slowing the advance of a 
wildfire.  This benefits not just hill residents in their evacuation but also all residents of our City. 



 

Panoramic Hill Off-Street Parking Survey Overview

The purpose of this survey is to catalog the number and location of dwellings in 
the Panoramic Hill neighborhood which have limited access to off-street parking;   
with specific focus on how many dwellings have no off-street parking or dwellings 
which have access to only a single off-street parking space.  This survey covers 
both the City of Berkeley and City of Oakland sections of the neighborhood. 

The survey focuses on compiling data for dwellings with either zero or one off-
street parking space because it is a common practice in our society for many 
households to function using two vehicles.  Therefore, households in this 
neighborhood with less than two off-street parking spaces often heavily rely on 
public street parking in their day to day lives.  

The City of Berkeley allows each household in the Panoramic Hill neighborhood 
to receive residential parking permits allowing three vehicles to park on the 
street.  In addition households can purchase one day and two week permits for 
visitors, contractors, etc.  Also available from the City of Berkeleyare special 
hangtag permits for in-home healthcare care-givers.  Relevant here because the 
Panoramic Hill neighborhood has a significant population of residents over 70 
years old. ( The City of Oakland has similar permit allowances as Berkeley, but 
only a portion of the Oakland area of Panoramic requires a permit for long term 
parking.)  

Because of the neighborhood’s orientation on a hillside bounded by UC Berkeley 
athletic facilities, public parkland or dense student housing, there is a general 
lack of feasible alternatives for local resident off-street parking.

Survey Results

Results found 46 dwellings in the neighborhood which have no off-street parking 
and 37 dwellings that have access to a single off-street parking space.
The survey has grouped its findings into four distinct geographical zones, each of 
which tends to share a regional on-street parking supply.

Panoramic Hill Association

September 20, 2023

Communication to Commission 



●  Page   March 5, 20212

ZONE ONE - LOWER HILL AREA - BERKELEY
The largest concentration of dwellings with limited parking is in the first three 
blocks of Panoramic Way and the adjoining single blocks of Mosswood Road and 
Arden Road:
FIRST BLOCK PANORAMIC WAY - #1 to #48
Zero Off-Street:  4 Dwellings
One Off-Street: 13 Dwellings

SECOND BLOCK PANORAMIC WAY - #60 to #77
Zero Off-Street: 8 Dwellings
One Off-Street: 4 Dwellings

MOSSWOOD ROAD  - #6 to #48 ( plus 19 ORCHARD LANE )
Zero Off-Street: 3 Dwellings
One Off-Street: 4 Dwellings

THIRD BLOCK PANORAMIC WAY - #74 to #130
Zero Off-Street: 1 Dwelling

ARDEN ROAD - #10 to #100 ( & 38 MOSSWOOD ROAD )
Zero Off-Street: 6 Dwellings
One Off-Street:  6 Dwellings

There is also one house immediately above Arden Road at 157 Panoramic Way 
with no off-street parking. This area from Arden Road down to the entrance of 
Panoramic Way is a geographically distinct grouping of dwellings which were 
primarily constructed during the first wave of development of the neighborhood 
before1950.  

In this zone there are a total of 22 dwellings with no off-street parking and 27 
dwellings with a single off-street parking space.  This area is currently served by 
a count of approximately 60 on-street public parking spaces.

ZONE TWO - MID PANORAMIC WAY / APARTMENT AREA - BERKELEY
A second area with a high concentration of dwellings with limited or no off-street 
parking is the dense section of dwellings near the entrance to the Lower Jordan 
Trail, from 303 to 365 Panoramic Way.  This zone includes a significant number 
of apartment units for the neighborhood, including an eleven unit complex and a 
three unit complex.  This section of Panoramic Way is also unique in its 
concentration of perpendicular public parking spaces, set back from the roadway 
allowing passage of two-way traffic.  The area has at least 16 perpendicular 
parking spaces, the count of which lacks specificity because the exact boundary 
between public and private parking in the area near 352 Panoramic Way is 
unclear.

Communication to Commission 



●  Page   March 5, 20213

The parking supply conditions of the apartment complexes is as follows.
The apartment complex at 340, 342 & 344 Panoramic Way has a two car garage 
on property, if that garage is available to tenants, that would tally as:

PANORAMIC WAY - #340 to #342
Zero Off-Street: 1 Dwelling
One Off-Street: 2 Dwellings

The apartment complex at 360 Panoramic Way has a mailbox with 11 apartment 
units labeled “A” through “K”.   The complex has an off street parking lot with 6 
parking spaces, if divided among the 11 apartments that would tally as:

PANORAMIC WAY - #360 units A through K
Zero Off-Street: 5 Dwelling
One Off-Street: 6 Dwellings

In this zone there are also two dwellings built on lots off of the street and 
adjacent to the connector trail between the Upper and Lower Jordan trails, those 
dwellings park vehicles in this same zone.

PANORAMIC WAY - #425 & to #444
Zero Off-Street: 2 Dwellings

ZONE THREE - UPPER PANORAMIC WAY - OAKLAND
A third area with a significant concentration of dwellings with no off-street parking 
is the section of Panoramic Way in Oakland from 430 Panoramic Way to 700 
Panoramic Way, this section stretches from the entrance of the Lower Jordan 
Trail to the scenic overlook area at the junction with upper Dwight Way.   A large 
portion of this roadway is sub-standard, extremely narrow and of uneven width.  
The downhill edge of the roadway is often poorly defined.  Also along this section 
of roadway the public parking areas are not clearly marked, sometimes there is 
signage which indicates either the beginning or ending of a public parking area, 
but without a corresponding sign designating the opposite end of a parking area.  
Given the unclear signage, a rough estimate of on-street public parking is 20 
spaces from 422 to 567 Panoramic Way.  In this area the dwellings with no off-
street parking are all on the downhill side of the roadway except for 517 
Panoramic Way which is on the up-hill side and is marked with blue disabled 
parking signage in front of the home.

PANORAMIC WAY - #442 to #517 
Zero Off-Street: 6 Dwellings

Starting at 567 Panoramic Way there is a stretch of roadway without homes in 
the area of Derby Creek .   Dwellings begin again at 604 Panoramic and from 
604 Panoramic Way to 650 Panoramic Way there are several more dwellings 

Communication to Commission 



●  Page   March 5, 20214

which lack off-street parking.  This section of roadway is somewhat wider than 
the road from 442-517;  this area also lacks clear designation of where it is legal 
for the public to park, but a reasonable estimate could be at least 20 public 
parking spaces.  It is also unclear in this area how many dwelling units exist, this 
survey assumes only single units per address.

PANORAMIC WAY - #604 to #650 
Zero Off-Street: 3 Dwellings

ZONE FOUR - UPPER DWIGHT WAY - OAKLAND
This area has several dwellings with no off-street parking scattered along upper 
Dwight Way from its start at the Oakland border, extending from 3241 to 3382 
Dwight Way.  They included, the geodesic dome at 3303 Dwight Way, two 
cottages uphill from the road at 3374 & 3382 Dwight Way and a landlocked home 
which appears on maps as 3241 Dwight Way, but is accessed via a stairway off 
of Dwight Place.  Similar to Panoramic Way in Oakland, this area of Dwight Way 
in Oakland lacks definitive signage indicating where it is legal or safe to park 
along the roadway, a rough estimate is approximately 11 public spaces between 
3303 and 3455 Dwight Way.

DWIGHT WAY - #3241 to #3382 
Zero Off-Street: 4 Dwellings

Communication to Commission 



Communication to Commission. Added to 
online agenda packet, following 10/25 meeting



Communication to Commission. Added to online agenda packet, following 10/25 meeting



Communication to Commission. Added to online 
agenda packet, following 10/25 meeting

























































































































































































!F
--

rl-
 

- 

--
 

- 
rlt

 
rr

 
rr

 
r 

r-
 

- 
rF

 
.r

- 
r-

 
--

 
F

 
- 

F
 

-

il
o n o 3 t ! x

v, I { m

F tl' o o z

o
?C

)
i> =

. 
-{

90 €s
E

E
s=

"t
si

*x
at

=
F

:J
 o

 
P

-{
D

 i
 

rr
ar

- 
O

 t
J=

B
=

.-
a

I 
er

>
g

c@
gI

.9
-8

.{
;

'e
5=

3
=

m
o'

:! F
'F m

?.

J
l! G
' c o

!
od -\

o
59 1\

)2 o

I I
a-

z 
I

oo
)o

 
:

*E
O

 
l,

:$
 i

lt
sF

 in
gi

 *

iri
sg

E
i i

i€
i

:t 
-=

O
dt

q 
g:

 eE

3 
F

* 
il;

E
=

' 
- 

()
\

d 
: 

E
d

6 
00

()
o 

o-
D

A
 

d!
+

g
--

i o =
t, q g g t 3' E I d t

o-
-o

(D o 6 a 3 E 3 c 't, I (n co 3 o 6 o - o o o f, 5 a m F o o - o a € o 6 D a D E I 6 d.

N o o <
>

.T
t

(D o

l

<
n'

O
J

ol o o 6



\

F ls lII H

lp

Q $ s s $ { > t : >
ti $

*t o .E 6 n n Jf o l' C o o F at i( t D E o a o i o o D
n o t F F o I o D it o ut o rl F o F o r<

;:F
F

r
F

r5
€g

 F

ffi
tfF

s;
E

'€
 li

rix
 tr

$.

F
F

iii
F

rg
f 

gr

F
;;r

T
,t8

tE
o

rg
E

.E

F
;ii

F

tg
iif

l
r 

e 
3 

r'9
n 

o 
ll 

E
ld

t?
 a

t 
O

 L
r-

lro
 

B
 

-
Y

i-

3
l- o F a rt

l{
ol

t
at cz qt ot

.
lh

 a
t

oB tto 8F
r

O
F

l. 
to

e(
'

1.
, 

O
[

O
r

o?
t

o3
t

8o E
(i

gr
. '}

or
.

oo o6 o oo or
t

no E
t

!F A
ar rB oc t!t E
r,

rt
 I

t
l8 -F
F

'o
 o sF F
r€

H F
A ;i ga ol
'

oB F qD

F
i

n o rn |i F o G o v 6 t' l" € F o F o t aa t{ o o o o .l cl tt n o o .' tD :
t it O { ro lE lo F to H l€ k ID lo le T
o r IE tF
.

IB a

B lY \s s F - * F s I L \t \o q

I
3 (t il & N 93 s C

t
e. 8' o F



:ii
7

f:

'-t1-i -

gSsE ts,

Brsa lii
rFFSF Ig
F ln Fs Htlooo lA
8g 13: F
E E9 -B 13

[: [[F lf
€ sB;8 IF

95FH
58 F Etl o Oti6o ItFcL d'r
u FB o F
g.r 998
O |l r"rtqoo 6ItoEOiFO c?r.tro tto o.lro r tD6.6f,

oisiotr O tsttc}trFoOD G

e 59 t
E io fqt!tn
5'c " "o90dg Pt-D
ftrrO.botroo*{' o
gg >g
Et"FE5lt it o'tt
E'€- EFo o dlroFtoot' Cl.tt

Itr lp h.
\, \ 

-\L
lvr

HFo

oOr

gl$fss:r
ilgg FF l',r
dllr;$s
FFigi[f,
EB re 9.,l>"EF'E
I8 I r" 3Etottao<
It B tr"' g f
leFfFfls
H,qB9 o'

;g;lFg
rg FE E

r&r"F g
FF FO
€ r' tg F

'oFPr E

gi :enn ts Ftt I 3q'f' o lDfl til

oft
F
r?
o
o€g
o
cL

D'It
:

:o
.o
oo
It

|rt
no
E
FI
F.F
F.A
F
F
o
It
o
xo
ots
o
''
F
ft
l.
6
Ngr
..l

l!oon
ott

Fil
D
CI,o
ott
tso
Vr}t
a

rn
no
B
rte
o
o
l-rt
ats
o
?t
o
u,t0ftfrcor
Fo
tso
rt'
N

Dar

eo
ac
o

Dtto
o
hlcots
Fo
u
Da

I

I

i
i

i
I
I

I
I
I
I
I

I
I

I

I

I

I



tt
o

Bl-
o
Fl
la

rt
b
e
D

tr

-r---*--

.---e'.-....'j....

i' FiFgfl-

ii fFii;H
;s $rs F'
Fr af 3 F8,

iu glia I

iiiiffi
*i ;i ra;

iI il$l;

ii $fsff
EE pFF
L. O ItO

I

lr

'giiiifiF

O rlHo l.
?Y rt ?

IFlfr

IH

F
IE
t<lo

li
ls

dtorP
Elg
$f, FsrF
sr F
r. B lB.

ils lEot h:
5ro l''
GlN..O

Dottoo
o

rtto
nocItI
It
Eono
s.E
€
o
tr}l
It
o
e
o
rt
ocn
€oooF

a

g*B

:F;ggfff:rFr 
€ Fss

iffl#lilgfimfi

ffiilffiffgi '[gl

Y

B r>o.o E

sSflOq' r.

r'l dfa' Dq o.-
PF;'i ODOl'r-lt q,
€[8..6 orttvcl6v,raEl+tt

<(DontD<
1..r.t s,io

Enxl'Ogt
Ort
gp
o4

oool*FtlFootoa.
t"

rt ti!tl'oortFoHo.
ts
>.9
Baoolroor{5
DOfro
O}Jtlo.tl



trt
l-F

6Ort
tgoFOrtrco-
^t?o 5
- atou4lto 6t"Eoto

oc?o !t
Er o. iaOoF.

AF.
tb
Eo(F ltoontl,sto
ilnr+
OBC'E 6
lrtl Fget
ottlt rt
!€8rto
l.,C Eg E.DFo.

.t!CTO-o<.o
ttFooa .r,rto
EsaeOFBrt.t

crOoDO
Ft- ItDD
e,r

Itr€c-o:tCAF.o
E

!0ttonoot
lr

IF
t3
ls
ls
E

3gnF t.o
s9.E
.? E 55i FOF€6rro ogr fhllo;t (io ft.E'
3E I IF. ,-t. a?t- Gt 0!t, erFlt iD

-3r aocl ztaItOo

f : *sO O FdF( rtriSiio a!

FrX 8.DOnE h co 1.. 0.6
Q A. o

E 
q''":.

98'g
F3I3tt rt cLl.oo oo ll.r
B I sFEo ort ct tt6orl.t
g F 59
E900Rootr..3 7t

"8?rho o

FE8
CL tbt' FiooaioooCLEOrtOOo
FOn

fp

Udlu,olf?,l It
rHFkt
lD16r<L
rl
lr
lo
Irtlo
IE
lo
IO
lu
lo
E
l-
ls
IF
t

,U
no3-
ooIt
H
ro

i

tr,o.E
Drl
"'IoIt
f'

o
tlD

nt
artF
l.
o
€o}'
f



---f-_i,.. .- .: t;.'' ..\.. ;

OtloErrt 3rOrtA
aiQF;tFooc€noortt
oF r.l

5r"oF. otCooF.rtatao.. Ft
oc6tts\<
o
ft
coIr
oA
DIto
ol*
0'oIoql
or
C'v
t-,
r?
orl
t

l\t

o (t6
os s g gF

GLEtt

}l l,l rrE !rtoo6
Cl€otExll+t lri
SOl.o|1o
'IDFOED
FFF
r.i o- rn$o t.6riF!|
o-g
D DlDP6 6F6
Fbo 6ootq FiI3'D
Ff}A
F Foott!'D}t

ct
Eo
a
fto
o
Fh

o
3rF
o,B
oto
E
orl
o
Fr
oY



'l

ALTERNATE PANORAMIC HILL ACCESS ROUTES

.Dw
@

a

a a

a

a
'a

o

'i
DaDaa

o.
oao

t

a o
a

a
a

aI
Ittt

I
ou

a a

J

aaaa

%

WA

\
f

a

I

PLA

A

W

w

%
%

o
DWIGHT WAY \

CALIFOR THd

toc

r/
a

I I
I

I

\ \ a
D

12' 450
oro

rA scHooL

Ctq C-25

\
e I4

17t
aoo E

BEEfi€LEY CIrY ?LArlNrHc 'OEPT.
2? 1939 8C



, s.;...,:
.'; 

{
T

ELEvlttox

E$ag
tLCVaTtorigssgstctto

o(l
o oo

a
8

Er.€v rtox
tuo

too
alto

aoo
tgl
0

oo

atIoo
uti

:

!E
iF
I
g

6t

at

I

Iia
3
B
i

Bz
onu

=q
c)F

=srro
>J,-l D
c)L
n*

z.:u>o{CM
{
rn
@

aa

o

a

l,

I

o

o

I
l|.o

t
D

6a
a

f;sa

o

o

No

Jrt

I

0it

u

aaa

N
aa

a'to

o
D-t
o:
c
Eo
.ri
t

o

l'.t
D.t
0
a
-c
3
3
t
t

taa

tao

Follli
I:ii

i{

€Illt,oIt
to
m

!o
{
ttt

I
I

{

I

Clct!3
OD,a'x

!

P
o
FIz{
5
l-
toc{
Irt

Ja

,
gF'
rtx
!
F

p
m
o{
Itl
,0
e
toc{
FI

6
otl

Fo
aa

It
tl

.1F
!
F

I
t
I\
t
I



E
,U

Eo*tb
Fo
trHFF

",::2

E
on
o
H
o\c
t$-

o
o
P
F
th
o
n,l.
D

C.
c
ao

ro
t,
10

E etclt'toFt*r-lrdttrrx.-rvY d
O 6CrFtrlo ir6-
.P 3*g Er F. tll 3AI $srlJ ott1.. PPttI .93H3 AeF ao9Cl

f S> * -o. on FI nq se::: n**ii 

iiii ir ; rf, i F I F rig ;
$ FE; H ;; F i i rr r;i f,

':' e :F r* 
li FIi

9F lt' ts-r6 cc?Eii o . r- lrqc-- 6 L oo F nB E.u
f gg EEB FF EEu*;..rF FF f,E F;:3 rR i i .i rF $;s IFEErs [$ gH flgfl
6 : I - 

FEf F i fg rB "EoE si lt ;; f?fq I flfi .



.ot
DB-
Glo
o

C{
Nt 0t

E
oo

P
tt
F
Fl,oo

i'ffiiliiiiiiFiiil

l$[IFIFI iliffiglE IiF
;;g ClSBi i h F gfr ;F; ::F
ssriiii iFriEIi iiieIoooo

Ee$s f$.HF r Fg eFo $rse ; F__ EF!,, , 6 "F .f*

A ttt C.?rDoo!,(1lgg'
rBFtr F}loo nF t.ll €rrqlO.i

Yr
Fo-14bl{

o(D
t\t O r!oo F! l.-o

tr(DF|f? Itr.)Ffrv|0\Otl



I

L

! !t e il I J -II o T I' I n t E
'

-t II o 3

! o I x I .6 C
' 3 I i) 6 5 { I vl

c f o N -5 N o C
) (t
l

o o 0) o o = L R
- a o t an G
'

e J J o q) ) o, E o N 3 0, -

Jn
 s

 +
c;

i 
e 

o,

$F
3g

:$
 3

fl
H

 g
fe s;
g

A
H

E
5.

3 
=

:-
=

cr
o 

J
o-

o
=

!a
 i

ea
S

3$
3

F
 1

g
sf

l3
d3

E
E

A
E

d 
ro

l
io

r 
:

'l'
=

 
(n

" 
o-

=
€x

3
iq

3
3s

d
dd

€
E

 g
.E

{J
 

-.

i s
.e

_r
(r

.
^o

o
5 

E
€

d 
og

 3
P

 E
 Q

'=
-F

4(
D

9€
S

 =
'

e$
eI

$E
 g

4

ab
€ 

e
O

la
C

La
r

(,
 N

O
, 

<
cY

-d
i5

 a
=

 *

a*
aH

,:o
o-

-E
B

ig

ls
S

s
rY

 c
 

:(
cl

E
'd

 ?
'"

fig
r:

tr
95

 E
jd

=
d

ln
rO

l-
: e

"'g
4F

r'
rd

sf
F

* 
ss

'*
$g s3

a
fr

=
F

=
P

 *
- 

-\
<

'
-{

o 
or

to
=

(D
oo

.

sr
S

sr
!$

i
C

D
O

M
C

A

3 
sd

 s
g

.E
E

 g€
=

ril
B

88
.

=
t' E
=

or
{

o.
j

6q f(
D 8E oo ct
o

i5
: 4f 9o
g (t !, o, o o o o' o = o 3 I { o =

.
E 6- s. o. o 6'

,
o) 3 g o o, 2r

,
o = o o c a 6 s. (D { =

'

39
qf

r:

+
E

gg
g

ad
 4

oI
*c

.F
E

e

d3
; 

n:
't5

3g
-i 

6 
es

=
ss

E
ig

sg
E

q*
;

6a
3C

**
gn

F
gi

E
;

gq
$r

99
lA

o

3*
ss

= o a o 3 o) (D o) o = c) c o- !q

ol
r

\<
'r e'
O

dg E
T

,tI s5
'

-<
-

0r
>

=
B

(o
tr

,
a(

D
&

'6
t(

o
<

E
a3 6s =

. 
0)

J3 c-
O

E
m o? <
od {= !3
o 2 sr v o I c 3 o o I c o- :s

a

o) t L g E o 5 ! d E o, a o-

l\' e o o o 6 o !t R f o. o o @ o :t o o) I (D an c o. F

gg
E

s"
,E

.F
's

 ;
se

S
l

*g
gg

x 
sg

€
F

 a
aS d-
i*

;g
 s

F
3e

*.
" 

il

ilE
$

qg
q

gs
e

F
F

3
xu

s

ftf
*

fli
:

E
 q

E
F

q8
.

.@
:i'

E
P

E
d.

dP

,g
F

6-
9

;6 to= ed g.
€

oL ?.
=

o=
:

E
F

E
or 6s t2
.o

F
6' d (D { =o (t, o 3 E o o, 6 o, o, 0) ) I o o c - = (D (D =(o o 3 o, iF (D o c a 3 (D

,8
,F

=
o'

(D
('

68 .d
e

ea g{ dq
)

E
d s9 l3 sq +5 =
(o 9f
.

-a
= a; q-
c

=
0, 8a g* G
l= dg 3,
F

sE a:
.

€=
t

sB o< cf
0, 9d 3q S
p

$=
.

JJ -'(
o

-d -A -g
l o o o 3 o



I

o
!
Eo
N

c-c
d
N.}
NI
or

a!0roclot
=6(D(D
C\:
EE
Ot =r
ES
86
ds{=g) o)t$oj

o

og
t
ot
6
0)
=
o
c,o
an

g
at

0)
a
rd
.crc
a'
L
Cl.

I
ot

;da3
o,

g

I
I

U'
=I
d{T
oc
?

ts
sE

a



 

Panoramic Hill Off-Street Parking Survey Overview

The purpose of this survey is to catalog the number and location of dwellings in 
the Panoramic Hill neighborhood which have limited access to off-street parking;   
with specific focus on how many dwellings have no off-street parking or dwellings 
which have access to only a single off-street parking space.  This survey covers 
both the City of Berkeley and City of Oakland sections of the neighborhood. 

The survey focuses on compiling data for dwellings with either zero or one off-
street parking space because it is a common practice in our society for many 
households to function using two vehicles.  Therefore, households in this 
neighborhood with less than two off-street parking spaces often heavily rely on 
public street parking in their day to day lives.  

The City of Berkeley allows each household in the Panoramic Hill neighborhood 
to receive residential parking permits allowing three vehicles to park on the 
street.  In addition households can purchase one day and two week permits for 
visitors, contractors, etc.  Also available from the City of Berkeleyare special 
hangtag permits for in-home healthcare care-givers.  Relevant here because the 
Panoramic Hill neighborhood has a significant population of residents over 70 
years old. ( The City of Oakland has similar permit allowances as Berkeley, but 
only a portion of the Oakland area of Panoramic requires a permit for long term 
parking.)  

Because of the neighborhood’s orientation on a hillside bounded by UC Berkeley 
athletic facilities, public parkland or dense student housing, there is a general 
lack of feasible alternatives for local resident off-street parking.

Survey Results

Results found 46 dwellings in the neighborhood which have no off-street parking 
and 37 dwellings that have access to a single off-street parking space.
The survey has grouped its findings into four distinct geographical zones, each of 
which tends to share a regional on-street parking supply.

Panoramic Hill Association

September 20, 2023



●  Page   March 5, 20212

ZONE ONE - LOWER HILL AREA - BERKELEY
The largest concentration of dwellings with limited parking is in the first three 
blocks of Panoramic Way and the adjoining single blocks of Mosswood Road and 
Arden Road:
FIRST BLOCK PANORAMIC WAY - #1 to #48
Zero Off-Street:  4 Dwellings
One Off-Street: 13 Dwellings

SECOND BLOCK PANORAMIC WAY - #60 to #77
Zero Off-Street: 8 Dwellings
One Off-Street: 4 Dwellings

MOSSWOOD ROAD  - #6 to #48 ( plus 19 ORCHARD LANE )
Zero Off-Street: 3 Dwellings
One Off-Street: 4 Dwellings

THIRD BLOCK PANORAMIC WAY - #74 to #130
Zero Off-Street: 1 Dwelling

ARDEN ROAD - #10 to #100 ( & 38 MOSSWOOD ROAD )
Zero Off-Street: 6 Dwellings
One Off-Street:  6 Dwellings

There is also one house immediately above Arden Road at 157 Panoramic Way 
with no off-street parking. This area from Arden Road down to the entrance of 
Panoramic Way is a geographically distinct grouping of dwellings which were 
primarily constructed during the first wave of development of the neighborhood 
before1950.  

In this zone there are a total of 22 dwellings with no off-street parking and 27 
dwellings with a single off-street parking space.  This area is currently served by 
a count of approximately 60 on-street public parking spaces.

ZONE TWO - MID PANORAMIC WAY / APARTMENT AREA - BERKELEY
A second area with a high concentration of dwellings with limited or no off-street 
parking is the dense section of dwellings near the entrance to the Lower Jordan 
Trail, from 303 to 365 Panoramic Way.  This zone includes a significant number 
of apartment units for the neighborhood, including an eleven unit complex and a 
three unit complex.  This section of Panoramic Way is also unique in its 
concentration of perpendicular public parking spaces, set back from the roadway 
allowing passage of two-way traffic.  The area has at least 16 perpendicular 
parking spaces, the count of which lacks specificity because the exact boundary 
between public and private parking in the area near 352 Panoramic Way is 
unclear.



●  Page   March 5, 20213

The parking supply conditions of the apartment complexes is as follows.
The apartment complex at 340, 342 & 344 Panoramic Way has a two car garage 
on property, if that garage is available to tenants, that would tally as:

PANORAMIC WAY - #340 to #342
Zero Off-Street: 1 Dwelling
One Off-Street: 2 Dwellings

The apartment complex at 360 Panoramic Way has a mailbox with 11 apartment 
units labeled “A” through “K”.   The complex has an off street parking lot with 6 
parking spaces, if divided among the 11 apartments that would tally as:

PANORAMIC WAY - #360 units A through K
Zero Off-Street: 5 Dwelling
One Off-Street: 6 Dwellings

In this zone there are also two dwellings built on lots off of the street and 
adjacent to the connector trail between the Upper and Lower Jordan trails, those 
dwellings park vehicles in this same zone.

PANORAMIC WAY - #425 & to #444
Zero Off-Street: 2 Dwellings

ZONE THREE - UPPER PANORAMIC WAY - OAKLAND
A third area with a significant concentration of dwellings with no off-street parking 
is the section of Panoramic Way in Oakland from 430 Panoramic Way to 700 
Panoramic Way, this section stretches from the entrance of the Lower Jordan 
Trail to the scenic overlook area at the junction with upper Dwight Way.   A large 
portion of this roadway is sub-standard, extremely narrow and of uneven width.  
The downhill edge of the roadway is often poorly defined.  Also along this section 
of roadway the public parking areas are not clearly marked, sometimes there is 
signage which indicates either the beginning or ending of a public parking area, 
but without a corresponding sign designating the opposite end of a parking area.  
Given the unclear signage, a rough estimate of on-street public parking is 20 
spaces from 422 to 567 Panoramic Way.  In this area the dwellings with no off-
street parking are all on the downhill side of the roadway except for 517 
Panoramic Way which is on the up-hill side and is marked with blue disabled 
parking signage in front of the home.

PANORAMIC WAY - #442 to #517 
Zero Off-Street: 6 Dwellings

Starting at 567 Panoramic Way there is a stretch of roadway without homes in 
the area of Derby Creek .   Dwellings begin again at 604 Panoramic and from 
604 Panoramic Way to 650 Panoramic Way there are several more dwellings 



●  Page   March 5, 20214

which lack off-street parking.  This section of roadway is somewhat wider than 
the road from 442-517;  this area also lacks clear designation of where it is legal 
for the public to park, but a reasonable estimate could be at least 20 public 
parking spaces.  It is also unclear in this area how many dwelling units exist, this 
survey assumes only single units per address.

PANORAMIC WAY - #604 to #650 
Zero Off-Street: 3 Dwellings

ZONE FOUR - UPPER DWIGHT WAY - OAKLAND
This area has several dwellings with no off-street parking scattered along upper 
Dwight Way from its start at the Oakland border, extending from 3241 to 3382 
Dwight Way.  They included, the geodesic dome at 3303 Dwight Way, two 
cottages uphill from the road at 3374 & 3382 Dwight Way and a landlocked home 
which appears on maps as 3241 Dwight Way, but is accessed via a stairway off 
of Dwight Place.  Similar to Panoramic Way in Oakland, this area of Dwight Way 
in Oakland lacks definitive signage indicating where it is legal or safe to park 
along the roadway, a rough estimate is approximately 11 public spaces between 
3303 and 3455 Dwight Way.

DWIGHT WAY - #3241 to #3382 
Zero Off-Street: 4 Dwellings


	AMENDED DFSC Agenda Packet 23-10-25.pdf
	DFSC Agenda Packet 23-10-25.pdf
	0. DFSC Draft Agenda 23-10-25
	Preliminary Matters
	Call to Order
	Approval of the Agenda
	Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters
	2. Fire Department Staff Report*
	Consent Items
	Action Items

	1. DFSC Staff Report10.25.23
	1a. Memo on Outdoor Warning System Approach and Initial Findings
	1b.. FY23 Measure FF Quarter 4
	FY23 Q4 Measure FF Summary Rpt

	2c. DFSC FY23 Review
	Slide 1: Disaster & Fire Safety Commission FY23 Review / FY24 Goals
	Slide 2: FY23 Year in Review July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023
	Slide 3: Measure GG FY23 Budget Review
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 7: Measure FF FY23 Budget Review
	Slide 8: FF Accomplishments Willand Division
	Slide 9: Defensible Space Inspection (DSI) Modernized program launch
	Slide 10: Ambassador Program Highlights
	Slide 11: Chipper Day Re-redesigned and expanded 
	Slide 12: WUI Intern Program Highlights
	Slide 13: Safe Passages
	Slide 14: FF Accomplishments OES / Fire Prevention
	Slide 15: Outdoor Warning System  Purchase, installation, testing
	Slide 16: FF Accomplishments Operations
	Slide 17: Water Delivery Capacity Quick water anywhere
	Slide 18: FF Accomplishments Office of the Fire Chief
	Slide 19: CalFIRE Grant
	Slide 20: FY24 Budget, Programs, & Projects  July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024
	Slide 21: Measure FF FY24: Looking ahead
	Slide 22: Priority Projects Wildland Division
	Slide 23: Pilot Resident Assistance Program  for Home Hardening
	Slide 24: Pilot Resident Assistance Program  for Defensible Space
	Slide 25: Priority Projects Operations Division
	Slide 26: Priority Projects Office of Emergency Services
	Slide 27: Evacuation and Response Time Study
	Slide 28: Priority Projects Office of the Chief
	Slide 29: Wildfire Risk & Urgency of Action A Review of the Wildfire Risk to Berkeley
	Slide 30: Climate Change
	Slide 31
	Slide 32: Fire Spread Rates
	Slide 33: Topography
	Slide 34: Weather: Strong Seasonal Diablo Winds
	Slide 35: Fuel: Grasslands to Urban Forest
	Slide 36: Fuel: Structures Separation Distance
	Slide 37: Fuel: Structures/Acre
	Slide 38: "All-Hazards" Disaster Profile Berkeley must remain prepared for...
	Slide 39: Berkeley's Hazard Landscape
	Slide 40: Disaster Preparedness Means...
	Slide 44: Emergency Services are Stretched Thin Short & Long-Term Goals to Stabilize
	Slide 45: Fire Service Mission Expansion
	Slide 46: Call Volume Trend
	Slide 47: Response Times
	Slide 48: Density
	Slide 50: Critical Call Analysis
	Slide 51: Cardiac Arrest Survival Rate
	Slide 52: Unit Hour Utilization Fire Engines
	Slide 53: Unit Hour Utilization Ambulances
	Slide 54: Wrap Up How Did We Get Here & Where Are We Going
	Slide 55: How Did We Get Here
	Slide 56: Where Are We Going?
	Slide 57: Questions & Discussion

	3. DFSC Minutes 23-09-27
	Preliminary Matters
	Call to Order  Meeting called to order at 7:06 pm
	Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters
	Public comment: 1
	2. Fire Department Staff Report*
	Consent Items
	Action Items

	4. Certificate of Appreciation-Steve-Greenberg (002)
	Steve Greenberg

	5. 2023 10 25 Dean Agenda Item re Panoramic Hill
	6. 2023 10 25 Dean DFSC Agenda Item re MixedUse Paths
	7. 2023 10 25 Deab Item to Chnge Agenda Format
	7a. Planning Commission Agenda Excerpt
	2023-06-07 PC Agenda

	Item 7b. Excerpt from Commissioners Manual
	8. DFSC Annual Work Plan FY23 Approved August 2023
	Mission Statement
	Summary of FY 2023-2024 Work Plan Activities

	9. 2023 10 25 Dean Agenda Item re ADU-JADU Ordinance clarification

	Panoramic Hill Parking Study.pdf

	Disaster Commission ltr 10-25-23.pdf
	Panoramic_Hill_study_1974.pdf
	Hayward Fault Panoramic Hill.pdf
	Second Access Road 1959
	PHA_ltr_Wachtel_councilmembesrs
	Panoramic Hill Parking Study






[bookmark: TITUS7HeaderPrimary]Internal

[image: CoB Logo B&W]

[bookmark: OLE_LINK2]DISASTER AND FIRE SAFETY COMMISSION

Regular Meeting

		
October 25, 2023

7:00 PM

Fire Department Division of Training Classroom – 997 Cedar Street 









Mayor’s Appointee- Andy Katz

[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderFirstPage]Internal

l









Internal

[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderPrimary]Internal

Commission Action Items





Wednesday, October 25, 2023	AGENDA	Page 1









Wednesday, October 25, 2023	AGENDA	Page 3



Internal

District 1 – Michael Wilson

District 2 – Weldon Bradstreet 

District 3 – Todd Darling            

District 4 – Robert Kinosian                                   

District 5 – Shirley Dean

District 6 – Greg Murphy

District 7 – Harrison Raine

[bookmark: TITUS2HeaderFirstPage]Internal



[bookmark: TITUS2HeaderPrimary]Internal

  

District 8 – Theo Gordon





[bookmark: TITUS3HeaderFirstPage]Internal



[bookmark: TITUS3HeaderPrimary]Internal

  







AGENDA



Preliminary Matters

Call to Order



Approval of the Agenda

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters


1. Chairperson’s Report





[bookmark: TITUS4HeaderPrimary]Internal

2. [bookmark: S3220]Fire Department Staff Report*

[bookmark: _Hlk148604040]Staff Report includes presentation on Fire Department FY23 Overview and FY24 Goals* (Staff)



Consent Items



3. Minutes of September 27, 2023*

From: Commission Secretary

Recommendation: Approve the draft minutes of the August 2, 2023 Regular Meeting.






[bookmark: _Hlk135036640]Action Items



[bookmark: TITUS5HeaderFirstPage]Internal



[bookmark: TITUS5HeaderPrimary]Internal

  



4. [bookmark: _Hlk135036672]Send a Commendation Letter to Steve Greenberg for his years of service to the City’s Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) program (Bradstreet)*

5. [bookmark: _Hlk148632230]Provide a recommendation to City Council on the development of a plan that includes a feasibility study and identification of funding sources for constructing an emergency secondary access road on Panoramic Hill (Dean)*

6. [bookmark: _Hlk148630218]Provide recommendation to Council regarding separation of mixed-use pedestrian and e-bike pathways (Dean)*

7. [bookmark: _Hlk148630685]Request to merge action and discussion calendars under the title “Items for Discussion and Possible Action” (Dean)*


[bookmark: _Hlk135036808]Discussion Items

8. New Commissioner Work Plan Participation* (Bradstreet)

9. Clarification of recently approved ordinance on ADUs and JADUs* (Dean)

10. Discussion on impact of increased density due to new developments along Shattuck/Adeline (Darling)

11. [bookmark: _GoBack]Discussion on biolabs and other large facilities, hazardous materials contained therein, and potential emergency response impacts and challenges (Dean)



Work Group Reports

· Plan & Budget Oversight 

· Home Hardening 

· Wildland Urban Interface

· Safe Passages 

· Community Outreach 



Future Agenda Items and Next Steps



· Send a Commendation Letter to Chief Sprague for the Master Facilities Plan (Dean)









[bookmark: TITUS6HeaderPrimary]Internal

Adjournment


~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Keith May, kmay@berkeleyca.gov  510-981-5508. 



Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: E-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required but, if included in any communication to a City board, commission, or committee, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission, or committee. If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission, or committee for further information.



Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at Berkeley Fire Department located at 2100 Martin Luther King Jr. Way Berkeley, CA.



[image: ]COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION:

[bookmark: disabilityref2]This meeting is being held in a wheelchair-accessible location. To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

I hereby certify that the agenda for this regular/special meeting of the Berkeley City’s Disaster and Fire Safety Commission was posted at the front of the Division of Training, 997 Cedar Street, as well as on the City’s website, three days prior to the scheduled Commission meeting. 





SECRETARY SIGNATURE















image2.png



image1.png








[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderPrimary]Internal

Certificate of Appreciation

awarded to

Steve Greenberg

From the Berkeley Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

In gratitude for and recognition of Steve’s decades of service in advancement of

disaster preparedness in the City of Berkeley. With skill and generosity, Steve has mentored a multitude of individuals to better prepare for and respond to large-scale emergencies, tirelessly led his neighborhood disaster group, and taught Berkeley CERT classes, 
potentially saving countless lives.  

		Weldon Bradstreet, Chair







Approved by vote and signed      /    /2023: 







image1.jpg



image2.jpeg








[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderPrimary]Internal

Item 7, Dean

October 25, 2023

To: 	Chair Bradstreet, Vice Chair Murphy and Members of the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (DFSC)

From:	Commissioner Shirley Dean

Re:  Request to merge action and discussion calendars under the title “Items for Discussion and Possible Action”

Currently our agenda divides items that we are considering into two groups:  Discussion and Action..  We have received requests from the public to merge these two groups under the title ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION.  We were told that this is done by other commissions.  I checked recent agendas of the Planning Commission and confirmed this.  The Planning Commission agenda states the following:

[bookmark: _GoBack]AGENDA ITEMS: All agenda items are for discussion and possible action. Public Hearing items require hearing prior to Commission action.

DFSC members should discuss this change and act to change our agenda format effective at our 

Next regular meeting.  This will be more efficient specifically  whenever action needs to be taken without delay and whenever the  discussion about a specific matter unexpectedly turns out to indicate an action should occur.




















[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderPrimary]Internal

Item 5, Dean

October 25, 2023

To: 	Chair Bradstreet, Vice Chair Murphy and Members of the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (DFSC)

From:	Commissioner Shirley Dean

[bookmark: _GoBack]Re:  Provide a recommendation to City Council on the development of a plan that includes a feasibility study and identification of funding sources for constructing an emergency secondary access road on Panoramic Hill (Dean)*

This item is to obtain DFSC approval to send to the City Council that they approve the development of a plan including a feasibility study and fundings sources for constructing an emergency secondary access road on Panoramic Hill.  Such a plan could well include city discussions with the UC-Berkeley and Alameda County and should also continued contact with the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission as well as other related Berkeley commissions.

Background:

	This is an urgent matter as all information indicates that wildfires are currently more frequent and intense than in previous years.  Additionally, we also are hearing that the likelihood of a major earthquake along the Hayward fault which bisects Berkeley is long overdue.  Panoramic Hill is the only neighborhood in the City within Fire Zone 3 and is officially recognized as having residential development with only one way out.  The city has recognized these factors for years but has not fully addressed the area’s evacuation problems while increasing density on the Hill and throughout the city.  Today, Berkeley is the second most dense city in the list of 51 largest cities in the State of California.  Berkeley is exceeded only by San Francisco.  We are more dense than Los Angeles and San Diego, but further we are uniquely bisected by a  major earthquake fault, and have numerous officially designated landslide areas and liquefaction zones within a tiny 10 square mile area. 

	The city has in part recognized the problem of evacuation by enacting parking restrictions in the Panoramic Hill area, but enforcement has always been a problem and enacting further restrictions is not the answer as buildings have been constructed without on-site parking spaces.  Further,  just recently at the urging of the State Department of Community Development the city approved new regulations to allow the construction of both an ADU and a JADU on each parcel in the High Severity Fire Rise Areas (Zones 2 and 3)  in the City.  This may change when an evacuation study is completed sometime next year, but in the meantime, such ADUs and JADUs without parking on-site could be constructed.  New construction may or may not happen, but if it does, it cannot be undone in the future and adds to the serious problems that already exist.

	In the past, a emergency apparatus only access road (the Jordan Trail) was constructed.  It is limited to Fire/emergency equipment only, not evacuation.  A secondary access road needs to be built because it is essential to keep the fire/emergency equipment road open at all times.  The secondary road does not need to be paved with asphalt and curbs, as a city street might be constructed but it must be constructed to provide a way out for the safety of residents but also to ensure that the road which provides basic emergency response is kept clear to provide increased fire fighting response in the event of wildfire and earthquake.  Adequate response can help slow the expansion of a wildfire thus benefiting both residents of the Hill but all residents in the City.  However, no matter what a secondary access road, for evacuation purposes must be constructed and maintained for the sake of saving lives of those residing and visiting Panoramic Hill. Recent changes for the South Sode make westward evacuation from the Hill even more problematic.  

	For the sake of public safety, we must take action right now. 


















[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderPrimary][bookmark: _GoBack]Internal

Item 6, Dean

October 25, 2023

To: 	Chair Bradstreet, Vice Chair Murphy and Members of the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (DFSC)

From:	Commissioner Shirley Dean

Re:  Provide recommendation to Council regarding separation of mixed-use pedestrian and e-bike pathways 

I have been advised by members of the public regarding plans for mixed use pedestrian and e-bike pathways in areas such as the Ohlone Greenway and around Cesar Chavez Park on the waterfront.  The expressed concerns involve public safety especially of collisions with pedestrians who are elderly, disabled, pregnant, pushing a stroller or have a small child in tow.

E-bikes come in three classifications.  Class 1 requiring the most help from a rider while still offering a relaxing recreation experience for the rider.   Class 2 requires less help and Class 3 which requires the least help from the rider, and which can reach speeds of around 28 miles per hour.  Class 3 e-bikes are generally viewed as more a motor vehicle than a bicycle.  Class 3 are the e-bikes that raise the most concerns. It is generally recognized that Class 3 bikes can and are regulated.

The essential question that I am putting before the Commission is whether pathways in Berkeley hat mix pedestrians with e-bikes, particularly Class 3 bikes, be regulated.  E-bikes, particularly Class 1 are popular and offer the rider a nice recreational experience.  I do not have data regarding collisions, but common sense tells me that collisions are likely in a mixed-use scenario.    One such action which the Commission should consider is that pathways should be separated – one for pedestrians and the other for e-bikes so that each group can have the recreational experience that each group is seeking. Also, if any separated path merges with or crosses a street, highly visible cautionary signs need to be posted.  In addition, a flyer informing young people about such requirements regarding age and Helmut requirements for e-bikes can be distributed by both public and private schools. 

The Commission should notify the Council of this recommendation.

  



 

  



  












[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderPrimary][bookmark: _GoBack]Internal

Item 9, Dean

October 25, 2023

To: 	Chair Bradstreet, Vice Chair Murphy and Members of the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (DFSC)

From:	Commissioner Shirley Dean

Re:  Clarification of recently approved ordinance on ADUs and JADUs



Recently the City Council at the urging of the State Department of Community Development approved an ordinance that allowed both an ADU and a JADU on parcels in Fire Zones 2 and 3.  The ordinance is very complicated and while  the Council also approved reviewing it after an evacuation study is completed next year, various additional structures could be constructed in Fire Zones 2 and 3 that will not he reversed even if found to be problematic.  It is, therefore, important to understand specifically what was approved as of now.  In addition, if the DFSC determines that there is an issue that needs to be immediately addressed by the Council, it may do so once some questions have been clarified.  

It is also important for the members of the Commission to review the report that Chief Sprague submitted to the Council on this matter.  If Commissioners don’t have that report, they need to inform the Secretary of the Commission to send them a copy for their review of this item.

Sone questions that need to be clarified:

1. Parking required for new ADUs and JADUs on streets where existing street parking is limited:  Since it does not appear that parking will be required for either or both new ADUs and JADUs, will the City provide enforcement of violations of street parking regulations that are already in place on streets where this new development is proposed?  The DFSC has recommended limited street parking enforcement to the Council in the past without success.  How will these issues impact by-right approval of this new development?



2.  Parking required for new ADUs and JADUs on narrow streets where street parking regulations don’t exist:  Currently, there is a process for establishing street parking regulations on streets that are so narrow or have turns in them that impact the response of emergency response vehicles – not just fire-fighting vehicles.   What will happen if new ADU and JADU development is proposed on such streets?  Will the development be put on hold until new street parking regulations process is complete or is the street parking problem just ignoed?



3. What are all the exemptions in calculating the distance between structures?  A separation of 8 ft between structures is recommended/required , but apparently such items as bay window extension into the set back is exempted.  Are there other exemptions because in the past it was possible to build wooden walkways within a required setback to the extent that reduced the actual setback to 0 for that property.  What is the rule now?



4. Are accessory buildings subject to the 8ft separation rule?  Under the new ordinance accessory buildings can be converted to ADUs in the future.  If not subject to the 8 ft separation rule will the conversion to an ADU be allowed?



5. When ADUs nd JADUs in the front yard are approved, what is the separation requirement?  It is said that front  setback will be as far from the front as possible.



6. While neighbors will receive notice of new developments, they will also be advised that their concerns won’t legally matter. It is good that unneighborly comment may result in early design improvements, but it is unclear just what the process for approval of new development is.  



There may be other questions that Commission members have, and they can be added during the discussion of this item.   The report submitted by Chief Sprague is important particularly regarding the separation issue.  It is essential that DFSC members fully understand the gritty details since he identifies that structure separation is a key factor in slowing the advance of a wildfire.  This benefits not just hill residents in their evacuation but also all residents of our City.


















[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderFirstPage]Internal



[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderPrimary]Internal

Berkeley Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 

 Draft WORK PLAN – (FY 2023-2024)

Berkeley Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

WORK PLAN – FY 2023-2024

[bookmark: _Toc359248454]Mission Statement



The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission serves as the public oversight body for Berkeley’s Measure GG and Measure FF funds, charged with reviewing the budget on a regular basis to ensure that the funds are spent in accordance with the intent of the voter approved measures, recommending the appropriate annual increase to the tax rate, and recommending new programs and policy positions requiring Measure GG and Measure FF funding. The ultimate goal of the Commission is to increase community safety, resilience, and education for community disaster preparedness. The Commission also 

reviews and makes recommendations on items referred by the City Council or other Commissions.

[bookmark: _Toc359248455]Summary of FY 2023-2024 Work Plan Activities

		

		 Name


		Activities


		Expected Outcomes


		Commissioners




		1.

		Plan & Budget Oversight



BFD Staff Contact: D. Sprague/ K. May

		a) Review BFD materials on a quarterly basis

b) Meet monthly as Finance ad hoc working group with FD to review monthly materials

c) Track financial issues related to FF & GG with the City Council


		a) Budget development plan 

b) Provide input of quarterly budget

c) Provide annual budget recommendation City Council on FF & GG 

d) Provide recommendation to City Council on annual GG increases

e) Provide City Council recommendation for midyear program corrections (ad hoc)

		Rotating group of commissioners (based on availability) on a quarterly basis hosted by Chair / Chief 







		2.

		Home hardening



BFD Staff Contact: D. Green

		a) Lead review of monthly inspection report

b) Review sessions with Fire Marshal

c) Listening sessions with Building Department


		a) Provide recommendation to City Council on annual inspection program targets

b) Provide recommendation to City Council on building code modifications for fire safety (ad hoc)

		· G. Murphy

· W. Bradstreet

· S. Dean









		3.

		Wildland-urban interface 

BFD Staff Contact: D. Green

		a) Review vegetation management program

b)  Discuss grant applications and planned project allocations



		a) Provide recommendation to City Council on vegetation management program

b) Knowledge of grant funding distribution



		· T. Gordon

· H. Raine

· T. Darling 










		

		GOAL

		Activities

		Expected Outcomes

		Commissioners



		4.

		Safe passages 











BFD Staff Contact: D. Green / S. Lana


		a) Review previous safe passages program and its component parts (parking restrictions, red curb, notification alerts, evacuation planning) 

b) Meet with community members for intake

c) Absorb CWPP report  



		a) Restart of Safe Passages Program

b) Formation of team/committee to develop plan

c) Provide recommendation to City Council on draft revised Safe Passages program





		· T. Gordon

· 

· T. Darling











		5.

		Community Outreach 





















BFD Staff Contact: S. Lana/ D. Dailey

		a) Work with FD on educating the public on disaster and fire safety programs 

b) Coordinate / alert commission of potential outlets for information

c) Follow / facilitate / support meetings with community groups

d) Follow to conclusion external emergency speaker system

e) Track Commission recommendations / status  

		a) Provide recommendation to City Council on mid-program changes to current communications plan

b) Provide City Council recommendation into annual   communications plan



		· 

· G. Murphy

· W. Bradstreet











Page 2 of 2





Page 7 of 7






[bookmark: TITUS7HeaderPrimary][bookmark: TITUS4HeaderPrimary]Internal

Internal

[image: CoB Logo B&W]

[bookmark: OLE_LINK2]DISASTER AND FIRE SAFETY COMMISSION

Regular Meeting

		
September 27, 2023

7:00 PM

Fire Department Division of Training Classroom – 997 Cedar Street 









Present: Mike Wilson, Andy Katz, Weldon Bradstreet, Shirley Dean, Robert Kinosian, Theo Gordon, Greg Murphy, Harrison Raine

Absent: Todd Darling 
Staff: Keith May, Leah Greenbaum, Sarah Lana 
Public: 9 attendees





AGENDA



Preliminary Matters

Call to Order

Meeting called to order at 7:06 pm



[bookmark: _GoBack]Approval of the Agenda
Motion to approve minutes: G. Murphy 
Second: T. Gordon
Vote: 5 Ayes: M. Wilson, A. Katz, W. Bradstreet, S. Dean, R. Kinosian, T. Gordon, G. Murphy, H. Raine; 0 Noes; 1 Absent: T. Darling; 0 Abstain



Raine arrived at 7:09 pm


Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters

Public comment: 1



1. Chairperson’s Report


2. Fire Department Staff Report*






Consent Items



3. [bookmark: _Hlk135036640]Minutes of August 2, 2023*

From: Commission Secretary

Recommendation: Approve the draft minutes of the August 2, 2023 Regular Meeting.

Motion to approve minutes: S. Dean 

Second: G. Murphy

Vote: 5 Ayes: M. Wilson, A. Katz, W. Bradstreet, S. Dean, R. Kinosian, T. Gordon, G. Murphy, H. Raine; 0 Noes; 1 Absent: T. Darling; 0 Abstain



4. Minutes of September 6, 2023*

From: Commission Secretary

Recommendation: Approve the draft minutes of the September 6, 2023 Special Meeting.


Motion to approve minutes: S. Dean 

Second: T. Gordon

Vote: 5 Ayes: M. Wilson, A. Katz, W. Bradstreet, S. Dean, R. Kinosian, T. Gordon, G. Murphy, H. Raine; 0 Noes; 1 Absent: T. Darling; 0 Abstain






[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderFirstPage]Internal



[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderPrimary]Internal

  



Internal





Internal



Action Items



[bookmark: TITUS2HeaderFirstPage]Internal

Internal



[bookmark: TITUS2HeaderPrimary]Internal

Internal

  



5. [bookmark: _Hlk135036672]Request that the Commission forward the Janice Thomas’ August 27, 2023 letter “RE: State Fire Marshal’s Recommendation For Panoramic Hill” to City Council, UC Berkeley President, and the UC President and Board * (Dean) 

Public comments: 2


After discussion, Dean pulled this item from the action calendar and will draft a letter of support for the Commission to consider at the next meeting. 

At the meeting, Ms. Thomas distributed printed materials to commissioners. Those materials were added to the online agenda packet after the meeting.  



[bookmark: _Hlk135036808]Discussion Items





[bookmark: TITUS5HeaderPrimary][bookmark: TITUS3HeaderPrimary]Internal

Internal

Commission Action Items

[bookmark: S3220]

6. Staff presentation on 2024 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan update process* (Staff)

Public comments: 3




7. Discussion on impact of increased density due to new developments along Shattuck/Adeline (Darling) 

Chair moved this item to next meeting. 


8. Discussion on biolabs and other large facilities, hazardous materials contained therein, and potential emergency response impacts and challenges (Dean)

Dean pulled item and requested Commission consider it as an action item at the next meeting. Dean will draft attachment for consideration at the next meeting. 


9. Discussion to write a Commendation to Chief Sprague for the Master Facilities Plan (Dean)

Dean pulled item and requested Commission consider it as an action item at the next meeting. Dean will draft attachment for consideration at the next meeting.


10. Update on the City’s progress of evaluating and regulating non-ductile concrete structures* (Murphy)




Work Group Reports

· Plan & Budget Oversight 

· Home Hardening 

· Wildland Urban Interface

· Safe Passages 

· Community Outreach 

No workgroup report outs—pushed to next meeting due to time. 

11. Future Agenda Items and Next Steps

· Discussion regarding concerns about the recent State Housing and Community Development ruling which would increase density in Fire Zones 2 and 3 (Dean)

· Discussion on impact of increased density due to new developments along Shattuck/Adeline (Darling) 

· Request that the Commission forward the Janice Thomas’ August 27, 2023 letter “RE: State Fire Marshal’s Recommendation For Panoramic Hill” to City Council, UC Berkeley President, and the UC President, City of Oakland, and Board of Forestry with a letter of support from the Commission  (Dean) 

· Discussion on biolabs and other large facilities, hazardous materials contained therein, and potential emergency response impacts and challenges (Dean)

· Discussion to write a Commendation to Chief Sprague for the Master Facilities Plan (Dean)





Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at 9:05pm


Motion to adjourn: G. Murphy
Second: S. Dean 
Vote: 5 Ayes: M. Wilson, A. Katz, W. Bradstreet, S. Dean, R. Kinosian, T. Gordon, G. Murphy, H. Raine.  0 Noes; 1 Absent: T. Darling; 0 Abstain




~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Keith May, kmay@berkeleyca.gov  510-981-5508. 



Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: E-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required but, if included in any communication to a City board, commission, or committee, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission, or committee. If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission, or committee for further information.



Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at Berkeley Fire Department located at 2100 Martin Luther King Jr. Way Berkeley, CA.



[image: ]COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION:

[bookmark: disabilityref2]This meeting is being held in a wheelchair-accessible location. To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

I hereby certify that the agenda for this regular/special meeting of the Berkeley City’s Disaster and Fire Safety Commission was posted at the front of the Division of Training, 997 Cedar Street, as well as on the City’s website, three days prior to the scheduled Commission meeting. 





SECRETARY SIGNATURE











image2.png



image1.png








[bookmark: TITUS1HeaderPrimary]Internal

[bookmark: _GoBack]From: City of Berkeley Office of Emergency Services
To: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission
RE: Outdoor Warning System (OWS) September 17, 2023 Test Approach and Initial Findings
Date: October 5, 2023



Introduction

On September 17, 2023, Berkeley’s Office of Emergency Services conducted the first public test of the City’s new OWS network of emergency sirens.  

In September 2021, City Council approved a $1.97 million contract with Genasys Inc to build and install the 15-siren OWS, funded by Measure FF.  By September 2023, installation was complete at 10 out of 15 siren sites. An additional temporary siren was tested at an 11th location at Live Oak Park as part of a ribbon-cutting and demonstration at the 1923 Fire Commemoration event Fire Ready Fest. 



Test Objectives

· Assess the functionality, audibility, and coverage of the newly installed outdoor warning system sirens. Focus on audibility of siren tone and voice announcement for people outdoors within ¼ mile, ½ mile and beyond of a siren site. 

· Familiarize the community with the new system, enhancing public awareness and preparedness for potential emergencies. Introduce system without creating distress, confusion, or panic 

Methodology



· Public Outreach: citywide postcard, social media, traditional media, newsletter announcements, Nixle, AC Alert, Emergency Map advisory, and build out of pages on the City and BFD websites.

· Siren activation: Sirens were activated at 11 sites using a gentle test chime tone and voice announcement. Siren activation was pre-scheduled at 10 sites and activated live at 1 site. 

· Public-facing “Did You Hear It?” Test Day survey: OES disseminated a survey inviting community to identify their location during test and whether they heard the tone and voice announcement. 

· Analysis of geographic and qualitative survey data: OES sorted responses into inside/outside categories, measured distance of responses from nearest siren at  ¼ mile and ½ mile, and reviewed free responses comments regarding what individuals planned to do if they heard a siren activate during an emergency and what feedback they had on the system. 


Initial Findings



· Audibility and Coverage: Over 1700 individuals completed the “Did You Hear It?” Siren Survey, providing OES with a significant amount of quantitative and qualitative data to analyze. The tables below summarize responses for the 415 individuals who were outdoors during the siren test:  





		Responses to “Did you hear the siren tone” among respondents 
who were outdoors during the test:

		



		

		Yes

		No

		Not Sure

		Total Respondents %



		Less than ¼ of a mile from siren location

		121(88%)

		14(10%)

		3(2%)

		138 (100%)





		Between ¼-1/2 a mile from nearest siren location

		134(71%)

		48(26%)

		6(3%)

		188(100%)









		Responses to “Did you hear the voice announcement” among respondents 
who were outdoors during the test:

		



		

		Yes

		No

		Barely/Could Not Clearly Hear the Words

		Total Respondents %



		Less than ¼ of a mile from siren location

		81(58%)

		23(17%)

		34(25%)

		138(100%)



		Between ¼-1/2 a mile from nearest siren location

		57(30%)



		67(36%)

		64(34%)

		188(100%)







 

· Technical Issues: No technical issues were identified. Siren hardware and software operated as expected. OES will implement regular systems training for assigned operators. 

· Public Response: Common comments in the free response field, included: 

· Concerns about not being able to hear the test/request to increase volume.

· Feedback that chime tone is not alarming enough for emergencies[footnoteRef:1] and other comments that the gentle chime tone was appreciated. [1:  There appeared to be a common misunderstanding that the chime tone used for the test would also be used in emergencies. During emergencies, OES would use a more traditional and attention-grabbing “slow wail” siren tone. ] 


· Requests for more siren locations/improved coverage in specific areas[footnoteRef:2]. [2:  The installation of the four remaining sirens will improve coverage in SW Berkeley and areas near Strawberry Canyon and Westbrae. The activation of UC Berkeley’s sirens would also improve coverage near campus. ] 


· Difficulty discerning the voice message at a distance/indoors.

· Appreciation for testing and implementing the system.




Next Steps 

· Schedule the next siren test after the entire network is complete (likely in 2024). 

· Continued discussion with host sites and other partners regarding test schedule.  

· Continued public outreach on siren capabilities and use cases. 









